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Directors’ Report

Unconsolidated Financial Statements

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the Directors’ Report of Faysal
Bank Limited (“FBL” or “the Bank”) along with Unconsolidated Financial Statements for the
quarter and half year ended on June 30, 2021.

Company Profile

FBL was incorporated in Pakistan on 3rd October 1994 as a public limited company and its
shares are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. FBL offers a wide range of modern banking
services to all customer segments, i.e. Retail, Small & Medium Sized Enterprises, Commercial,
Agri-based and Corporate.

The Bank’s footprint now spreads over 207 cities across the country with 576 branches. In line
with FBL's strategy of transforming itself into a full-fledged Islamic Bank, 87% of its branches
are now offering dedicated sharia-compliant banking services.

Holding Company

Ithmaar Bank B.S.C (closed), a banking entity regulated by the Central Bank of Bahrain is the
parent company holding directly and indirectly, 66.78% (2020: 66.78%) of the shareholding in
the Bank. Ithmaar Bank B.S.C. (closed) is a wholly owned subsidiary of lthmaar Holdings
B.S.C. and Dar Al-Maal Al-Islami Trust (DMIT) is the holding company of Ithmaar Holding B.S.C.
and is the ultimate parent of the Bank. DMIT was formed by an indenture under the laws of the
Commonwealth of The Bahamas for the purpose of conducting business affairs in conformity
with Islamic law, principles and tradition.

Economic Update

At its meeting on July 27, 2021, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) decided to maintain
policy rate at 7% to protect the nascent economic recovery. Earlier, Pakistan Bureau of
Statistics (PBS) estimates showed that real GDP grew by 3.94% in FY21 against SBP’s
projection of 2.9%. In the budget, Ministry of Finance now projects the economy to grow by 5%
in FY22.

The inflation for July 2021 clocked in at 8.40% due to higher base affect as indicated by a high
MOM inflation number of 1.34%. The inflation numbers are projected to remain high as positive
sentiments grow globally regarding the prospects of an economic recovery and prices of
almost all major groups of commodities rise. SBP has projected the average inflation for FY22
to be between 7-9%.

Exports, at USD 25.3 billion in FY21, were 18.1% higher and imports, at USD 56.3 billion, were
26.4% higher than the values reported for FY20. The trade deficit, at USD 31.1 billion, was
34.1% higher than the value reported for the previous fiscal year. Although the pandemic
helped in curtailing the trade deficit to USD 23.2 billion in FY20, the higher growth rate of
imports relative to exports has taken it to the pre-pandemic levels. The high import bill has
begun to show as USD/PKR parity has weakened by 6.6% over the last three months.
Regardless, the SBP’s data showed that the remittances amounted to USD 29.4 billion for the
year ended in June, leading to some reprieve on the current account.
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Pakistan’s current account recorded a ten-year low deficit of USD 1.85 billion in FY21. In line
with SBP’s projections, the current account deficit in FY21 stood at 0.6% of GDP. MPC has
projected that given the market-based flexible exchange rate system, resilience in remittances,
an improving outlook for exports, and appropriate macroeconomic policy settings, current
account deficit will remain in the range of 2-3% of GDP in FY22.

The fiscal deficit is 1.2% lower than last year and recorded at 4.6% of GDP during July-May
FY21. With continuity in fiscal accommodation, it is expected that the fiscal deficit for the entire
fiscal year will end between 7-7.5% of GDP. For FY22, the fiscal deficit is budgeted to be at
6.3% of GDP. Pakistan’s top tax machinery collected PKR 4.73 trillion in the outgoing fiscal year
exceeding the revised target of PKR 4.69 trillion by PKR 41 billion.

Given Pakistan has done well on the Covid-19 front when compared with rest of the world and
National Income Accounts data has improved rapidly, GDP growth in FY22 is expected to be an
improvement from FY21. Further, favorable impacts of a rebound in cotton production owing to
measures taken by the Federal Government, buoyant construction activities and an expected
uptick in the Public Sector Development Program (PSDP) spending are likely to offset any
negative impact of an expected tightening of credit conditions as growth picks up. However,
the unfolding downside risks posed by on-going fourth COVID wave in Pakistan and the global
spread of new variants creates significant uncertainty and warrants a continued emphasis on
supporting the recovery through accommodative monetary policy as Pakistan looks to play
catch up with other developing economies in the region.

Bank’s Performance
Conversion to Islamic

The Bank continues to make progress on its strategy to convert into a full-fledged Islamic Bank.
The Bank is working on an ‘Asset Led’” model whereby conversion of conventional assets into
Sharia compliant financing precedes conversion of deposits. FBL has hit another landmark on
its conversion journey at June '21 end as almost three-fourths of its financing is under Islamic
modes. This has been made possible by the untiring efforts of the entire team under the
supervision and guidance of the Senior Management, Sharia Board and the Board of Directors.
We remain confident that by the grace of Allah and with your support we will be able to achieve
our objective of full conversion as envisaged in Bank’s strategy.

During the period the Bank has launched ‘Faysal Islami Noor card’, Pakistan’s first Tawarrug
based Shari'ah compliant alternative to conventional credit card. Despite the challenges posed
by Coronavirus pandemic, the Bank has resumed the process of converting branches to
achieve over 95% Islamic network by the end of 2021.

Support of Government Initiatives

Faysal Bank is actively engaged with State Bank of Pakistan in its efforts to support the
country’s economy. FBL is one of the first banks selected by SBP to offer Roshan Digital
Accounts to overseas Pakistanis. As per SBP’s directives, Roshan Apni Car and Roshan Samaji
Khidmat for donations & charities were also successfully launched during the six months period
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under review exclusively for Roshan Digital Account Holders. Roshan Apni Car initiative will
help non-resident Pakistanis in applying for car financing via digital platform at preferential
rates and expeditious delivery. FBL is also actively participating in Kamyab Jawan Program of
Government and meeting disbursement targets. Further the Bank is also taking all possible
steps to ensure availability of low-cost housing finance to the eligible segments of the society
under Naya Pakistan Housing Program.

Financial Highlights

Rs. in million

Key Balance Sheet Numbers June 21 December ‘20 Growth%
Investment 327,547 276,930 18.3%
Financing 343,687 318,180 8.0%
Total Assets 786,181 709,958 10.7%
Deposits 591,850 540,636 9.5%

Rs. in million

Profit & Loss Account June ‘21 June ‘20 Growth%
Total Revenue 16,191 17,161 -5.7%
Non-Markup Expenses 9,657 9,371 3.1%
Profit before tax and provisions 6,534 7,790 -16.1%
Provisions / (Reversal) (12) 1,465 -100.8%
Profit before tax 6,546 6,325 3.5%
Tax 2,526 2,515 0.4%
Profit after tax 4,020 3,810 5.5%
Earnings per share (Rupees) 2.65 2.51

Despite growth of Rs. 95 billion in deposits since June '20, net markup income of the Bank
during the six months ended June 30, 2021 is 9.8% lower than the corresponding period of
previous year. The main reason for this decline is the drastic cut of 625 bps in policy rate by
SBP in the first half of 2020. The policy rate was reduced from 13.25% to 7% to support the
economy during the unprecedented lockdown necessitated by the Covid 19 pandemic.
However, the bank has been able to offset the decline in its margin to a large extent by
generating higher non markup income. Led by higher fee, foreign exchange and other income,
the Bank’s non-markup income was 8.4% higher than first half of 2020. Strong cost control
measures have ensured that non markup expenses show only a marginal increase of 3.1%
despite opening of 30 new branches in 2020 and inflation.

Net provisions for half year under review reflected reversal of Rs.12 million as against charge of
Rs. 1,465 million in the corresponding period of last year. Credit for this primarily goes to
recoveries from non-performing financings of Rs.1,144 million and reversal of impairment on
equity securities of Rs. 310 million.
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In view of focus on increasing revenue through alternate sources, cost control initiatives and
effective risk management, the Bank was able to post profit after tax of Rs. 4,020 million. Profit
for the six months ended June 30, 2021 is 5.5% higher than corresponding period of previous
year which is indeed commendable since the policy rate has nearly halved.

On the balance sheet side deposits grew by 9.5% to Rs. 591.9 billion. The Bank concentrated
on reducing cost of deposit during the quarter and saw significant growth in low cost deposits.
Ratio of current deposits to total deposits has improved from 30.7% to 35.8%. Financing
increased by 8.0% from December '20 level to Rs. 343.7 billion. Investments were 18.3% higher
at Rs. 327.5 billion. Accordingly, total assets of the Bank are at Rs. 786.2 billion as at June 30,
2021 registering a strong half yearly growth of 10.7%.

Risk management

Credit Risk Management, in coordination with the Business Units, continued to closely monitor
the credit portfolio in these unprecedented times that also included several Rapid Credit
Portfolio Reviews. Regular follow-up has been maintained with the customers to proactively
identify, monitor and manage credit relationships. Enterprise Risk Management function
maintained enhanced monitoring of market, liquidity & operational risks. A senior management
committee, headed by the Chief Risk Officer, continued to oversee implementation of measures
required to ensure well-being of the employees, customers and community at large in these
difficult times of pandemic. Being a responsible corporate citizen, FBL joined hands with the
Government in its fight against Covid 19 by vaccinating its staff, and their eligible family
members.

Outlook

The latest wave of Covid 19 has once again necessitated curtailment of economic activities.
Alhamdulillah, even with the emergence of Delta variant, the Country has suffered much less
casualties as compared to our neighbours. Due to timely and effective initiatives, pacing up of
immunization and other preventive measures, it is hoped that the country will be able to
maintain moderation of the effects of the pandemic.

Despite the challenges posed by the pandemic, FBL has and will continue to work towards its
commitment to achieve complete Islamic transformation. The Bank is targeting to convert
another 65 branches to Islamic during the second half of 2021. Another 30 new Islamic
branches will be opened before the year end. Digital banking is another strategic thrust of FBL
which has achieved greater emphasis during the pandemic. We remain committed to provide
best in class service to our customers in these testing times through improved and enhanced
offerings from alternate delivery channels and digital platforms.
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Credit Rating:

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) and Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA)
have re-affirmed the following entity ratings:

Long-Term AA
Short-Term Al+

Stable outlook has been assigned to the ratings by both the rating agencies.

Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors has declared an interim cash dividend of Rs. 0.5 per share i.e 5% (June
30, 2020: Nil).

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board & Management of the Bank, we would like to take this opportunity to
thank the shareholders and valued customers for the trust they have reposed in the Bank. We
are also grateful to the State Bank of Pakistan and Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan for their continued support and guidance. We would also like to express sincere
appreciation for the Shariah Board and employees of the Bank for their dedication and hard
work.

Approval

In compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2017, this Directors’ Report with the
recommendation of the Board Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has been approved
by the Directors in their meeting held on August 26, 2021 and signed by the Chief Executive
Officer and a director.

President & CEO Chairman
Karachi
Dated: August 26, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report
To the members of Faysal Bank Limited
On review of Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim unconsolidated statement of financial
position of Faysal Bank Limited (the Bank) as at June 30, 2021 and the related condensed
interim unconsolidated profit and loss account, condensed interim unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, condensed interim unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, and
condensed interim unconsolidated cash flow statement, and notes to the financial statements
for the six-month period then ended (here-in-after referred to as the “interim financial
statements”). Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these interim
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these
interim financial statements based on our review. The figures for the quarters ended June 30,
2021 and June 30, 2020 in the condensed interim unconsolidated profit and loss account and
condensed interim unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income have not been
reviewed and we do not express a conclusion on them.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity”. A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other
review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.

The engagement partner on the review resulting in this independent auditor’s review report is
Noman Abbas Sheikh.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Dated: August 30, 2021
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Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2021

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital
Reserves

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net
Unappropriated profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

10
11
12
13
14
15
20
16

17
18
19

20
21

22

23

Un-audited Audited

June 30, December 31,

2021 2020

—————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------

54,908,437 59,881,289
6,407,854 2,878,547
7,500,000 2,985,000
327,546,728 276,929,792
343,686,928 318,179,878
24,089,253 24,038,885
1,697,310 1,540,779
20,444,678 23,523,784
786,181,188 709,957,954
18,915,475 13,543,270
84,133,494 58,446,516
591,850,409 540,635,833
1,464,190 1,591,769
30,933,073 35,633,134
722,296,641 649,850,522
63,884,547 60,107,432
15,176,965 15,176,965
11,007,600 11,032,647
8,569,163 9,027,473
29,130,819 24,870,347
63,884,547 60,107,432

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Profit And Loss Account (Un-audited)

For the quarter and half year ended June 30, 2021

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed
Net mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee and commission income
Dividend income

Foreign exchange income

(Loss) / income from derivatives
Gain on securities

Other income

Total non mark-up / interest income

Total income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses

Workers Welfare Fund

Other charges

Total non mark-up / interest expenses

Profit before provisions
Provisions and write-offs - net
Extra ordinary / unusual items

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

Basic / diluted earnings per share

Note

25
26

27

28
29

30

31

32

33

34

Quarter ended Half year ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees '000
12,471,899 14,755,093 24,493,924 31,956,993
5,995,174 8,063,786 12,578,303 18,739,738
6,476,725 6,691,307 11,915,621 13,217,255
1,290,839 622,064 2,432,150 1,654,841
154,707 171,352 243,834 231,580
513,720 596,353 1,025,768 928,564
(13,438) 10,508 (44,875) 101,043
38,176 542,464 450,243 1,015,175
65,151 46,894 167,778 12,076
2,049,155 1,989,635 4,274,898 3,943,279
8,525,880 8,680,942 16,190,519 17,160,534
4,910,305 4,484,501 9,518,540 9,114,816
57,555 73,528 133,812 148,127
4,136 105 4,141 108,012
4,971,996 4,558,134 9,656,493 9,370,955
3,553,884 4,122,808 6,534,026 7,789,579
521,180 1,245,045 (11,548) 1,464,808
3,032,704 2,877,763 6,545,574 6,324,771
1,116,122 1,147,996 2,625,752 2,514,822
1,916,582 1,729,767 4,019,822 3,809,949
Rupees
1.26 1.14 2.65 2.51

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CHAIRMAN

June 30, 2021 |

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR
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Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-audited)
For the quarter and half year ended June 30, 2021

Quarter ended Half year ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees '000

Profit after taxation for the period 1,916,582 1,729,767 4,019,822 3,809,949
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that may be reclassified to the profit and

loss account in subsequent periods:

- Movement in surplus on revaluation of

investments - net of tax 331,977 (910,305) (217,660) (985,421)

Total comprehensive income 2,248,559 819,462 3,802,162 2,824,528

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

Reserves Surplus / (deficit)
Capital reserves on revaluation of
Non-
distri-
Share butable | Reserve Fixed Unappro-
. capital | arising | Statutory assets | priated Total
capitl Sha.r N reserve on reserve Total Inves't- non- Total profit
premium (NCR)- | amal- ments banking
gainon |gamation assets
bargain
purchase
Rupees '000
Balance as at January 1, 2020 (audited) 15,176,965 10,131 475,930 23,952 9,320,945 9,830,958 3,383 915 7,364,165 10,748,080 19,507,870 55,263,873
Profit after taxation for the half year ended
June 30, 2020 - - - - - - - - - 3,809,949 3,809,949
Other comprehensive loss - net of tax - - - - - - (985421) - (985,421) - (985,421),
Total comprehensive (loss) / income - - - - - - (985421) - (985,421) 3,809,949 2,824,528
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax - - - - - - - (67,707)  (57,707) 57,707
Amortisation of intangible assets - customer
relationship - net of tax - - (58591) - - (58,591) - - - - (58,591)

Balance as at June 30, 2020 (un-audited) 15,176,965 10,131 417,339 23952 9,320,945 9,772,367 2,398,494 7,306,458 9,704,952 23,375,526 58,029,810

Profit after taxation for the period from

July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 - - - - - - - - - 2,700,556 2,700,556
Other comprehensive (loss) / income - net of tax - - - - - - (619,769) - (619,769) 38,656  (581,113)
Total comprehensive (loss) / income - - - - - - (619769) - (619,769) 2,739,212 2,119,443
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - 1,302,101 1,302,101 - - - (1,302,101)

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax - - - - - - - (57,710)  (57,710) 57,710

Amortisation of intangible assets - customer
relationship - net of tax - - #me21) - - (41,821) - - - - (41,821)

Balance as at December 31, 2020 (audited) 15,176,965 10,131 375518 23952 10,623,046 11,032,647 1,778,725 7,248,748 9,027,473 24,870,347 60,107,432

Profit after taxation for the half year ended

June 30, 2021 - - - - - - - - - 4019822 4,019,822
Other comprehensive loss - net of tax - - - - - - (217,660) - (217,660) - (217,660);
Total comprehensive (loss) / income - - - - - - (217,660) - (217,660) 4,019,822 3,802,162

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax - - - - - - - (58,112)  (58,112) 58,112

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of
non-banking assets - net of tax - - - - - - - (182,538) (182,538) 182,538

Amortisation of intangible assets - customer
relationship - net of tax - - (25047) - - (25,047) - - - - (25,047)

Balance as at June 30, 2021 (un-audited) 15,176,965 10,131 350471 23952 10,623,046 11,007,600 1,561,065 7,008,098 8,569,163 29,130,819 63,884,547

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement (Un-audited)
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

Half Year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
Note  -------emmmeooe Rupees '000 ------------------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 6,545,574 6,324,771
Less: dividend income (243,834) (231,580)
6,301,740 6,093,191
Adjustments:
Depreciation on owned fixed assets 30 677,158 641,894
Amortisation of intangible assets 30 63,180 97,842
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 30 766,439 735,055
Depreciation on non-banking assets 30 2,483 3,408
Workers Welfare Fund 133,812 148,127
Provision against loans and advances - net 32 506,889 1,450,453
(Reversal of provision) / provision for diminution in value of investments - net 32 (316,391) 35,054
Reversal of provision against off balance sheet obligations - net 32 (22,645) (880)
Unrealised loss / (gain) on securities - held for trading - net 24,373 (51,337)
Gain on sale of fixed assets - net 29 (14,131) (5,475)
Gain on sale of non-banking assets - net 29 (47,487) -
Charge for defined benefit plan 105,429 59,406
Loss / (income) from derivative contracts - net 44,875 (101,043)
Mark-up / return / interest expensed - lease liability against right-of-use assets 26 716,959 505,778
Bad debts written off directly 32 18,548 4,078
2,659,491 3,522,360
8,961,231 9,615,551
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions (4,515,000) (6,893,000)
Held-for-trading securities (49,705,537) 5,979,070
Advances (26,032,487) 7,288,149
Others assets 2,680,009 (4,720,787)
(77,573,015) 1,653,432
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable 372,205 3,629,738
Borrowings from financial institutions 25,012,152 (23,479,605)
Deposits 51,214,576 38,578,190
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) (5,195,067) 3,940,785
71,403,866 22,669,108
Income tax paid (2,617,748) (942,611)
Contribution to gratuity fund (105,429) (91,958)
Net cash generated from operating activities 68,905 32,903,522
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investment in available-for-sale securities (2,196,203) (37,774,160)
Net divestment in associates 200,000 -
Net divestment in held-to-maturity securities 1,020,002 1,037,650
Dividends received 174,223 103,517
Investment in operating fixed assets (841,098) (737,739)
Investment in intangible assets (160,774) (74,109)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 15,266 5,687
Proceeds from sale of non-banking assets 468,837 -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,319,747) (37,439,154)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liability against right-of-use assets (867,504) (912,012)
Dividend paid (25)| | (18)
Net cash used in financing activities (867,529) (912,030)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period (2,118,371) (5,447,662)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 61,126,505 62,765,265
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 59,008,134 57,317,603

The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

21

2.2

2.3

341

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Faysal Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 3, 1994 as a public limited company
under the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). Its shares
are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Bank is mainly engaged in Conventional and Islamic
Corporate, Commercial and Consumer banking activities. The Bank is operating through 575 branches
(December 31, 2020: 575 branches) and 1 sub-branch (December 31, 2020: 1 sub-branch). Out of these, 500
(December 31, 2020: 500) are Islamic banking branches and 76 (December 31, 2020: 76) are conventional
banking branches.

The registered office of the Bank is located at Faysal House, ST-02, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Ithmaar Bank B.S.C (closed), a fully owned subsidiary of Ithmaar Holdings B.S.C is the parent company of the
Bank, holding directly and indirectly 66.78% (December 31, 2020: 66.78%) of the shareholding of the Bank.
Dar Al-Maal Al-Islami Trust (DMIT), ultimate parent of the Bank, is the holding company of Ithmaar Holdings
B.S.C.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and VIS Credit Rating Company Limited have determined
the Bank’s long-term rating as 'AA’ (December 31, 2020: 'AA’) and the short term rating as 'A1+’ (December
31, 2020: 'A1+’) on June 30, 2021 and June 26, 2021 respectively.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to
Islamic modes, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible
forms of trade related modes of financing include purchase of goods by banks from their customers and
immediate resale to them at appropriate mark-up in price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and
sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial
statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilised and the appropriate portion of
profit thereon.

The financial results of the Islamic banking branches have been consolidated in these condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements for reporting purposes after eliminating inter branch transactions and
balances. The financial results of all the Islamic banking branches are disclosed in note 39 to these
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

The Bank has controlling interest in Faysal Asset Management Limited (FAML) and is required to prepare
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. These condensed interim
financial statements represent the unconsolidated results of the Bank and a separate set of condensed interim
consolidated financial statements are also being presented by the Bank.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34 ’Interim financial reporting’ issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of, and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP).
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the
directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IAS 34 or IFAS, the requirements of
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

3.2 As per the directive of the SBP through its letter BPRD (R&P-02)/625-99/2011/3744 dated March 28, 2011,
gain arising on bargain purchase of Pakistan operations of Royal Bank of Scotland (ex-RBS Pakistan) was
credited directly into equity as Non-distributable Capital Reserve (NCR). The SBP allowed the Bank to adjust
the amortisation of intangible assets against the portion of reserve which arose on account of such assets
identified as a result of such acquisition. Accordingly, during the period ended June 30, 2021, the Bank has
adjusted amortisation of intangible assets net of tax amounting to Rs. 25.047 million (June 30, 2020: Rs.
58.591 million) from the NCR.

3.3 These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements do not include all the information and
disclosures required in the annual audited unconsolidated financial statements, and are limited based on the
format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan through BPRD Circular Letter No. 05 dated March 22, 2019
and IAS 34, and should be read in conjunction with the annual audited unconsolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2020.

3.4 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards
that are effective in the current period:

3.41 There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the
Bank’s accounting periods beginning on January 1, 2021 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have
any significant effect on the Bank’s operations and are therefore not detailed in these condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements.

3.5 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards
that are not yet effective:

3.5.1 The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the accounting and reporting
standards would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards, amendments
or interpretations:

Effective date (annual periods

Standards, interpretations or amendments beginning on or after)
- IFRS 9 - 'Financial instruments’ January 1, 2022*
- |AS 16 - 'Property, plant and equipment’ (amendments) January 1, 2022
- |AS 37 - 'Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ (amendments) January 1, 2022
- IFRS 3 - 'Business combinations’ (amendments) January 1, 2022
- IAS 1 - 'Presentation of financial statements’ (amendments) January 1, 2023

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards and amendments on the
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank.

*The SBP vide its BPRD Circular Letter No. 24 dated July 5, 2021 has notified the effective date of IFRS 9,
'Financial instruments’ as January 1, 2022. IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’ has replaced IAS 39, 'Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement’. The standard addresses recognition, classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard has also introduced a new
impairment model for financial assets which requires recognition of impairment charge based on 'expected
credit losses’ (ECL) approach rather than 'incurred credit losses’ approach. The ECL has an impact on all the
assets of the Bank which are exposed to credit risk.

3.5.2 There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for
the Bank’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

8.1

8.2

will not have any significant effect on the Bank’s operations and are therefore not detailed in these condensed
interim unconsolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial
statements are the same as applied in the preparation of the annual unconsolidated financial statements of the
Bank for the year ended December 31, 2020.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for certain fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims which
have been carried at revalued amounts, certain investments and derivative contracts which have been
marked to market and are carried at fair value, obligations in respect of staff retirement benefits and lease
liabilities which have been carried at present value and right-of-use assets which are initially measured at an
amount equal to the corresponding lease liabilities (adjusted for any lease payments and certain specified
costs) and depreciated over the respective lease terms.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Items included in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates. These condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Bank’s functional and
presentation currency.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The basis for accounting estimates adopted in the preparation of these condensed interim unconsolidated
financial statements is the same as that applied in the preparation of the annual unconsolidated financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2020, except for a change in the accounting
estimate for useful lives of certain categories of fixed assets, as disclosed in more details in note 14.4 to these
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Bank are consistent with those
disclosed in the annual audited unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.

COVID-19 has impacted banks in Pakistan on a number of fronts including increase mainly in credit risk
pertaining to the loans and advances portfolio, continuity of business operations and managing cybersecurity
threat as an ever increasing number of customers are being encouraged to use digital channels. Major
aspects of COVID-19 on the Bank’s risk management policies in the areas of credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk have been discussed below.

The risk management function of the Bank is regularly conducting assessments of the credit portfolio to
identify borrowers most likely to get affected due to changes in the business and economic environment.
During the year ended 2020, the SBP had responded to the crisis and took regulatory measures to provide an
impetus to economic activity. During 2020, the SBP, amongst other reliefs, allowed the banks to defer
borrowers’ principal loan repayments by one year and / or restructure / reschedule loans for borrowers who
required relief of principal repayments exceeding one year and / or mark-up with no reflection on credit history.
The Bank had provided few reliefs, deferred certain borrowers’ principal loan repayments and restructured /
rescheduled loans as per the SBP directives. At present there is no major impact on loans where reliefs were
provided on principal loan repayments deferred last year that are due for repayments during the half year
ended June 30, 2021. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2020, the management of the Bank
exercised prudence and recognised a general provision in addition to the requirements of the Prudential
Regulations amounting to Rs 250 million against its performing consumer portfolio keeping in view the impacts
of COVID-19. The management of the Bank has maintained this provision in these condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements. The Bank is also closely monitoring the deferred / restructured protfolio
as the deferment period is going to be expired in the near future.
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021
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1"

24 |

With regards to the liquidity risk, the Bank remains confident that the liquidity buffer currently maintained is
sufficient to cater any adverse movement in cash flow maturity profile, having liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) at
222.6% (December 31, 2020: 211%) and net stable funding ratio (NSFR) at 164.18% (December 31, 2020:
169.28%) as at June 30, 2021.

Moreover, the Pakistan Stock Exchange has shown a positive trend in the current period reflecting increasing
stability of the industries operating in the country. As a result, no impairment loss is required to be recognised
on the available-for-sale listed equity securities by the Bank in these condensed interim unconsolidated
financial statements (June 30, 2020: Rs 379.63 million).

With regards to the operational risk, the Bank is closely monitoring the situation and has invoked required
actions to ensure the safety and security of its staff and uninterrupted service to customers. The senior
management of the Bank is continuously monitoring the situation and is taking timely decisions to resolve any
concerns.

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
- local currency 12,533,737 13,650,095
- foreign currencies 1,002,559 6,147,826
13,536,296 19,797,921
With State Bank of Pakistan in
- local currency current accounts 25,209,163 25,323,730
- foreign currency current accounts 2,032,314 2,121,802
- foreign currency deposit accounts 3,790,308 3,860,816
31,031,785 31,306,348
With National Bank of Pakistan in
- local currency current accounts 8,223,269 8,202,707
Prize bonds 2,117,087 574,313
54,908,437 59,881,289
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
- in current accounts 1,146,926 645,262
Outside Pakistan
- in current accounts 5,260,928 2,233,285
6,407,854 2,878,547
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Call money lendings 7,500,000 -
Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) - 2,985,000
7,500,000 2,985,000
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
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11.1  Securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions

Pakistan Investment
Bonds

12 INVESTMENTS

12.1  Investments by type:

Held-for-trading securities
Federal Government securities
Shares

Available-for-sale securities
Federal Government securities
Shares
Non Government debt securities

Held-to-maturity securities
Federal Government securities
Non Government debt securities

Associates *
Faysal Income & Growth Fund
Faysal Islamic Stock Fund
Faysal Savings Growth Fund

Subsidiary *
Faysal Asset Management
Limited

Total Investments - net

* related parties

Note

123

122
125

126

Un-audited

Audited

June 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

Further Further
Held by given as Total Held by given as Total
Bank Bank
collateral collateral
Rupees ‘000
- - - 2,985,000 - 2,985,000
R _ = 2,985,000 - 2,985,000
Un-audited Audited
June 30,2021 December 31, 2020
Cost/ Provision surlus/ || camyin Cost/ Provision Camyin
Amortised for p g Amortised for Surplus mying
— (Deficit) value . value
cost diminution cost diminution
Rupees '000
55,595,744 2220 || 55,597,964 || 6,534,053 418 6,534,471
643,846 (26,175) 617,671 -
56,239,590 (23,955) 56215635 6,534,053 418 6,534,471
198,348,914 . 169,000 ((198,517,914 | (195,466,018 - 15,838 195,481,856
8,182,346 |[ 1,379,215 ||  (70,981)|[ 6,732,150 || 8421544 || 1,688,885 376,325 7,108,984
51,191,340 || 559,787 || 2,461,104 || 53,092,657 || 51,638,835 559,787 2,523,780 53,602,828
257,722,600 1,939,002 2,559,123 258,342,721 255,526,397 2,248,672 2,915,943 256,193,668
1,597,048 - 1,597,048 || 1,597,048 - 1,597,048
10,811,454 [| 1,521,895 9,289,559 || 11,831,456 || 1,528,616 10,302,840
12408502 1,521,895 10,886,607 13428504 1528616 11,899,888
268,625 268,625 268,625 268,625
- - 200,000 200,000
693,247 693,247 693,247 693,247
961,872 961872 1,161,872 1,161,872
1,139,893 1,139,893 1,139,893 1,139,893
328472457 3460897 2535168 327,546,728 277,790,719 3,777,288 2,916,361 276,929,792

June 30, 2021 |

Half Year | 25



Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

12.2

124

12.4.1

12.4.2

26 |

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020

————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------

Bai Muajjal - gross 2,212,625 2,212,625
Less: deferred income (93,236) (194,895)
Less: profit receivable shown in other assets (522,341) (420,682)

Bai Muajjal - net 1,697,048 1,597,048

This represents Bai Muajjal with Government of Pakistan carrying profit at the rate of 12.84% per annum
(December 31, 2020: 12.84%) maturing in December, 2021,

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ---------------—--
Investments given as collateral
- Market treasury bills 11,500,000 -
Provision for diminution in value of investments
Opening balance 3,777,288 3,849,281
Charge / (reversals)
Charge for the period / year - 379,785
Reversals for the period / year (6,721) (14,982)
Reversals on disposals for the period / year (309,670) (436,796)
(316,391) (71,993)
Closing balance 3,460,897 3,777,288
Particulars of provision against debt securities Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Non- Non-
performing || Provision || performing Provision
Category of classification investments investments
Rupees '000
Domestic
- Loss 2,081,682 2,081,682 2,088,403 2,088,403

The market value of non government debt securities classified as held-to-maturity as at June 30, 2021
amounted to Rs. 9,392.586 million (December 31, 2020: Rs. 10,029.170 million).
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12.6

Associates
Faysal Income & Growth Fund
Faysal Savings Growth Fund

Subsidiary
Faysal Asset Management
Limited

Associates

Faysal Income & Growth Fund
Faysal Islamic Stock Fund
Faysal Savings Growth Fund

Subsidiary
Faysal Asset Management

Limited

12.6.1

Investment in subsidiary and associates

As at June 30, 2021

For the half year ended June 30, 2021

12.6.1

Country of % Total
. o . . Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit comprehensive
incorporation | | Holding )
income
————————————————————————— Rupees '000
Pakistan ~ 23.42% 1,135,244 34,520 37,590 26,991 26,991
Pakistan ~ 27.38% 2,532,685 101,799 99,703 70,673 70,673
Pakistan ~ 99.99% 1,168,160 123952 267,013 115,447 115,447
As at December 31, 2020 For the half year ended June 30, 2020
Total
. )
. Country.o f /° Assets Liabilities Revenue Proft comprehensive
incorporation || Holding (loss) .
income / (loss)
————————————————————————— Rupees '000
Pakistan ~ 40.67% 672,056 15,337 48,656 35,409 35,409
Pakistan ~ 37.64% 646,596 17,356 - - -
Pakistan ~ 21.54% 3,232,073 44,947 118,353 99,254 99,254
Pakistan ~ 99.99% 1,062,615 133,622 80,983 (15,928) (15,928)

Faysal Asset Management Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan under the provisions of the

repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) on August 6, 2003 as an unlisted
public limited company. The Company commenced its operations on November 14, 2003. The Company is a
Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC). The Company has obtained a license to carry out asset management
and investment advisory services under the requirements of Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment
and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,

2008.

June 30, 2021 |
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133
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ADVANCES
Note Performing Non-performing Total
Un-audited Audited Un-audited Audited Un-audited Audited
June 30, ||December 31,(| June 30, [|December 31, June 30, December 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees '000
Loans, cash credits, running
finances, etc. 85,625,827 119,418,082 20,075,203 22,406,562 105,701,030 141,824,644
Islamic financing and related assets 254,264,691 189,951,257 3,199,169 3,294,935 257,463,860 193,246,192
Bills discounted and purchased 354,240 4,150,522 423,629 523,928 777,869 4,674,450
Advances - gross 340,244,758 313,519,861 23,698,001 26,225,425 363,942,759 339,745,286
Provision against advances 13.3
- specific = (19,377,700)[| (20,649,632) (19,377,700) (20,649,632)
- general (878,131) (915,776) - - (878,131) (915,776)
(878,131) (915,776) (19,377,700)  (20,649,632)  (20,255,831)  (21,565,408)
Advances - net of provision 339,366,627 312,604,085 4,320,301 5575793 343686928 318,179,878
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
Particulars of advances (gross) e Rupees '000 ------------------
- in local currency 362,105,189 339,106,568
- in foreign currency 1,837,570 638,718
363,942,759 339,745,286

Advances include Rs. 23,698.001 million (December 31, 2020: Rs. 26,225.425 million) which have been
placed under non-performing status as detailed below:-

Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
. Non- Non-
Category of classification performing Provision performing Provision
loans loans
------------------------------------ Rupees '000 —-eemeemmremmmremmmrememreoemeces
Domestic
- other assets especially mentioned 239,467 69 204,782 -
- substandard 1,081,282 95,848 2,727,006 541,529
- doubtful 790,299 218,648 900,979 237,209
- loss 21,586,953 19,063,135 22,392,658 19,870,894
Total 23,698,001 19,377,700 26,225,425 20,649,632
Particulars of provision against advances
Un-audited Audited
[ June 30, 2021 I December 31, 2020 |
[ specific [[ General [[ Total |[ Specific [[ General [[  Total |
Rupees '000
Opening balance 20,649,632 915,776 21,565,408 23,475,724 761,951 24,237,675
Exchange adjustments (21,567) - (21,567) 25,095 - 25,095
Charge for the period / year 1,650,615 - 1,650,615 3,610,762 250,000 3,860,762
Reversals during the period / year (1,106,081) (37,645)[| (1,143,726) (1,485,958) (96,175) (1,582,133)
544,534 (37,645) 506,889 2,124,804 153,825 2,278,629
Amounts written off (1,794,899) - (1,794,899)  (4,975,991) - (4,975,991)
Closing balance 19,377,700 878,131 20,255,831 20,649,632 915,776 21,565,408
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13.3.1

13.3.2

13.3.3

14

141

14.2

As per the Prudential Regulations, the SBP has specified that general provision against consumer financing
should be maintained at varying percentages based on the non-performing loan ratio present in the portfolio.
These percentages range from 1% to 2.5% for secured and 4% to 7% for unsecured portfolio.

The Bank also maintains general provision in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Prudential
Regulations for Housing Finance issued by the SBP. The provision ranges between 0.5% to 1.5% based on the
non-performing loan ratio present in the portfolio.

The Bank is also required to maintain a general reserve of 1% against un-secured small enterprise financing
portfolio as per the applicable requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

In addition to the requirements of the Prudential Regulations, the management has exercised prudence and
recognised a general provision amounting to Rs. 250 million keeping in view the impacts of COVID-19.

As allowed by the SBP, the Bank has availed benefit of forced sale value (FSV) of collaterals held as security
of Rs 2,581.515 million (December 31, 2020: Rs 2,632.364 million) relating to advances while determining the
provisioning requirement against non-performing financing as at June 30, 2021. The additional profit arising
from availing the FSV benefit (net of tax) as at June 30, 2021 which is not available for distribution as either
cash or stock dividend to shareholders and bonus to employees approximately amounted to Rs 1,574.724
million (December 31, 2020: Rs 1,605.742 million).

Although the Bank has made provision against its non-performing portfolio as per the category of
classification of the loans, however, the Bank still holds enforceable collateral against certain non-performing
loans in the event of recovery through litigation. These securities comprise of charge against various tangible

assets of the borrower including land, building and machinery, stock in trade, etc.

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
FIXED ASSETS Note 2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
Capital work-in-progress 141 957,677 833,461
Property and equipment 23,131,576 23,205,424
24,089,253 24,038,885
Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 176,714 225,737
Equipment 476,956 561,044
Furniture and fixture 40,056 18,838
Vehicles - 42
Land and building 263,951 27,800
957,677 833,461
Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
Additions to fixed assets 2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
The following additions have been made to fixed assets during the period:
Capital work-in-progress 841,084 701,663
Property and equipment
Building on freehold land - 36,075
Furniture and fixture 6,680 97,986
Electrical, office and computer equipment 505,620 378,582
Vehicles 16,470 58,765
Right-of-use assets - land and building 654,002 655,444
Others 188,112 445,791
1,370,884 1,672,643
Total 2,211,968 2,374,306
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14.3

14.4

15

15.1
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Disposal of fixed assets

The net book value of fixed assets disposed of during the period is as follows:

Furniture and fixture

Electrical, office and computer equipment
Vehicles

Others

Total

Change in accounting estimate

Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 ------------------
49 3
1,013 171
9 38
64 -
1,135 212

With effect from January 1, 2021, the management of the Bank has revised its estimate of the useful lives of
core banking software and automated teller machines (ATMs) from 5 years to 7 years whereas the useful lives
of other softwares and hardware projects have been revised from 3 years to 5 years. This revision has been
made to make the useful lives of these assets more reflective of their consumption pattern.

The revision has been accounted for as a change in accounting estimate in accordance with the requirements
of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors’. Had the revision in useful lives of these assets not been made, the depreciation expense for the period
would have been higher by Rs 86.176 million and consequently profit before tax would have been lower by the

same amount.

Note

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress 151

Computer softwares
Customer relationship

Total
Capital work-in-progress

Computer softwares

Additions to intangible assets
The following additions have been made to intangible assets during the period:

Computer softwares - directly purchased

Half Year | June 30, 2021

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
499,053 567,658
523,715 357,516
574,542 615,605
1,098,257 973,121
1,697,310 1,540,779
499,053 567,658
Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 ------------------
229,379 242,742
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16

16.1.1

17

OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency - net of provision

Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currencies - net of provision

Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracts
Fair value of derivative contracts

Acceptances

Credit cards and other products fee receivable
Receivable from brokers against sale of shares

Dividend receivable

Receivable from 1Link (Private) Limited

Rent and amenities receivable

Rebate receivable - net

Defined benefit plan asset

Others

Less: provision held against other assets

Other assets - net of provision

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims - net

Other assets - total

Provision held against other assets

Dividend receivable

SBP penalties

Fraud forgery theft and account receivable
Security deposits

Others

Movement in provision held against other assets

Opening balance

Charge for the period / year
Reversals during the period / year

Amounts written off
Closing balance

BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan

21

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020

———————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
8,698,976 7,291,340
4,779 1,314
1,089,367 788,518
988,126 1,229,421
702,744 649,361
88,404 190,130
6,219,529 10,726,305
472,699 369,968
112,566 20,241
154,243 84,632
446,350 515,944
11,291 33,159
79,402 87,632
64,205 64,205
366,581 343,660
19,499,262 22,395,830

(325,832) (325,832)
19,173,430 22,069,998
1,271,248 1,453,786
20,444,678 23,523,784
75,348 75,348
51,050 51,050
20,867 20,867
22,994 22,994
155,573 155,573
325,832 325,832
325,832 252,176
- 74,536

- (795)
- 73,741

= (85)
325,832 325,832
13,915,475 13,543,270
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Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
18 BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
- under export refinance scheme - part | and Il 3,711,352 8,623,400
- under long term financing facility 1,148,210 1,246,164
- under long term financing facility for renewable power energy (RPE) 764,372 809,662
- under scheme of financing facility for storage of agricultural produce 38,843 53,129
- under Islamic export refinance scheme 25,032,101 19,400,601
- under refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries 10,571,487 12,932,302
- under Islamic financing for renewable energy 2,310,421 1,400,274
- under Islamic long term financing facility 5,847,842 3,599,252
- under Islamic temporary economic refinance scheme 12,762,500 3,807,141
- under Islamic refinance facility for combating COVID-19 322,800 35,400
- under Islamic financing facility for storage of agricultural produce 24,377 -
62,534,305 51,907,325
Repurchase agreement borrowings 11,402,607 -
Borrowing from other financial institution 483,871 500,000
Total secured 74,420,783 52,407,325
Unsecured
Overdrawn nostro accounts 2,308,157 1,633,331
Musharaka acceptances - 410,000
Other borrowings 7,404,554 3,995,860
Total unsecured 9,712,711 6,039,191
84,133,494 58,446,516
19 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
In local In forei%;n Total In local | uforeig.;n | Total
currency currencies currency currencies
Rupees '000
Customers
Current deposits 188,547,115 21,521,120 || 210,068,235 || 144,344,241 20,813,651 165,157,892
Savings deposits 193,848,126 17,201,039 || 211,049,165 || 184,980,930 17,643,501 202,624,431
Term deposits 133,187,670 2,069,911 || 135,257,581 || 143,287,216 3,141,533 146,428,749
Margin deposits 2,856,818 7,903 2,864,721 3,341,663 15,132 3,356,795
518,439,729 40,799,973 559,239,702 475,954,050 41,613,817 517,567,867
Financial institutions
Current deposits 1,617,772 34,959 1,652,731 813,493 49,245 862,738
Savings deposits 23,921,126 - 23,921,126 15,880,218 - 15,880,218
Term deposits 7,036,850 = 7,036,850 6,325,010 - 6,325,010
32,575,748 34,959 32,610,707 23,018,721 49,245 23,067,966
551,015,477 40,834,932 591,850,409 498,972,771 41,663,062 540,635,833
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Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
20 DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES) / ASSETS Note 2021 2020
Deductible temporary differenceson ~ TTT7TTC Rupees '000 -
- provision for diminution in the value of investments 41,250 165,137
- provision against advances, off balance sheet, etc. 1,184,573 1,215,623
- provision against other assets 128,462 128,462
1,354,285 1,499,222
Taxable temporary differences on
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets (1,565,092) (1,602,246)
- surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets (14,113) (14,113)
- surplus on revaluation of investments (998,058) (1,137,218)
- fair value adjustment relating to net assets acquired upon amalgamation (224,071) (240,087)
- accelerated tax depreciation (17,141) (97,327)
(2,818,475) (3,090,991)
(1,464,190) (1,591,769)
21 OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 2,183,035 3,792,193
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies 10,559 6,344
Unearned commission and income on bills discounted 837,706 968,302
Accrued expenses 1,772,987 2,484,143
Acceptances 16 6,219,529 10,726,305
Unclaimed dividends 45,018 45,038
Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 1,357,139 1,907,030
Current taxation (provision less payments) 72,888 58,669
Charity fund balance 1,050 1,070
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 211 104,924 127,569
Security deposits against leases 341,503 586,301
Withholding tax payable 158,533 165,433
Federal excise duty payable 48,788 67,402
Payable to brokers against purchase of shares 165,558 35,001
Fair value of derivative contracts 681,052 964,671
Payable related to credit cards and other products 197,081 1,146,914
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 9,034,350 8,530,893
Advance against disposal of assets 12,130 459,467
Funds held as security 261,055 242,227
Payable to 1Link (Private) Limited 150,548 154,308
Insurance payable 104,334 115,600
Clearing and settlement accounts 6,618,109 2,706,765
Others 555,202 341,489
30,933,073 35,633,134
21.1 Provision against off-balance sheet obligations
Opening balance 127,569 113,676
Charge for the period / year 1,262 | | 25,132
Reversals during the period / year (23,907) (11,239)
(22,645) 13,893
Closing balance 104,924 127,569
22 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX
Surplus on revaluation of:
- available for sale securities 2,559,123 2,915,943
- fixed assets 7,316,055 7,411,321
- non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 1,271,248 1,453,786
11,146,426 11,781,050
Deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of:
- available for sale securities (998,058) (1,137,218)
- fixed assets (1,565,092) (1,602,246)
- non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims (14,113) (14,113)
(2,577,263) (2,753,577)
8,569,163 9,027,473
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Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
Note 2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Guarantees 23.1 32,931,164 29,202,222
Commitments 23.2 226,573,249 183,850,529
Other contingent liabilities 23.3 4,122,244 4,122,244
263,626,657 217,174,995
23.1 Guarantees:
Financial guarantees 6,697,064 7,810,863
Performance guarantees 7,941,513 5,662,415
Other guarantees 18,292,587 15,728,944
32,931,164 29,202,222
23.2 Commitments:
Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions
- letters of credit 75,739,365 50,571,999
Commitments in respect of:
- forward foreign exchange contracts 23.21 105,608,260 93,025,986
- forward government securities transactions 23.2.2 11,407,050 2,989,036
- derivatives - cross currency and interest rate swaps (notional principal) 23.2.3 6,698,587 8,272,187
- extending credit (irrevocable) 23.5 26,946,615 28,859,840
Commitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed assets 50,006 49,303
- intangible assets 128,366 82,178
226,573,249 183,850,529
23.2.1 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts
Purchase 73,272,270 66,134,904
Sale 32,330,990 26,891,082
105,603,260 93,025,986
23.2.2 Commitments in respect of forward government securities transactions
Purchase 11,407,050 -
Sale - 2,989,036
11,407,050 2,989,036
23.2.3 Commitments in respect of derivatives
Sale 24 6,698,587 8,272,187
23.3  Other contingent liabilities
Suit filed by a customer for recovery of alleged losses suffered which
is pending in the Honorable High Court of Sindh. The Bank's legal
advisors are confident that the Bank has a strong case 2,510,000 2,510,000
Indemnity issued favouring the Honorable High Court in one of the cases 457,543 457,543
Tax liability of gain on bargain purchase on the acquisition of
ex-RBS Pakistan 23.3.1 1,154,701 1,154,701
4,122,244 4,122,244
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23.3.1 Income tax assessments of the Bank have been finalised upto the tax year 2019 (accounting year 2018) and

24

tax return for the tax year 2020 (accounting year 2019) has already been filed. Income tax return for the tax
year 2021 (accounting year 2020) will be filed within stipulated timeline.

The department and the Bank has disagreement on a matter relating to taxability of gain on bargain purchase
on the acquisition of ex-RBS Pakistan. The additional tax liability on the matter amounts to Rs. 1,154.701
million (December 31, 2020: Rs. 1,154.701 million). The Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [(CIR(A)]
had deleted the said additional tax liability, however the income tax department had filed an appeal with the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR(A). During the current period, the ATIR has
passed an order and maintained the decision of the CIR(A) in favour of the Bank. The management of the
Bank is confident that in case an appeal is filed by the department against the order of the ATIR, the matter
will be decided in the Bank’s favour and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these condensed
interim unconsolidated financial statements in respect of this matter.

There are certain claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debt amounting to Rs 33,864 million
(December 31, 2020: Rs 31,374 million). These mainly represent counter claims filed by the borrowers for
restricting the Bank from disposal of assets (such as mortgaged / pledged assets kept as security), cases
where the Bank was proforma defendant for defending its interest in the underlying collateral kept by it at the
time of financing, certain cases filed by ex-employees of the Bank for damages sustained by them
consequent to the termination from the Bank’s employment and cases for damages towards opportunity
losses suffered by the customers due to non-disbursements of running finance facility as per the agreed
terms. The above also includes an amount of Rs 25,299 million (December 31, 2020: 25,299 million) in respect
of a suit filed against the Bank for declaration, recovery of monies, release of securities, rendition of account
and damages.

Based on legal advices and / or internal assessments, the management is confident that the above matters
will be decided in the Bank’s favour and the possibility of any outcome against the Bank is remote and
accordingly no provision has been made in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

Commitments to extend credits

The Bank makes commitments to extend credit (including to related parties) in the normal course of its
business but these being revocable commitments do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the
facilities are unilaterally withdrawn except for Rs. 26,947 million (December 2020: Rs. 28,860 million) which
are irrevocable in nature.

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS == Rupees '000 ------r---mmmemom-
Cross currency swaps (notional principal) 6,462,271 7,792,684
Interest rate swap (notional principal) 236,316 479,503
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Product analysis

Counterparties

June 30, 2021 (Un-audited)

Cross currency swaps

Interest rate swaps

. L Mark to market . . Mark to market
Notional principal . Notional principal .
gain / (loss) gain
Rupees '000

With banks for
Hedging - - - =
Market making 2,651,948 35,423 236,316 3,904
With other entities for
Hedging = = = =
Market making 3,810,323 (631,975) - -
Total
Hedging - - - =
Market making 6,462,271 (596,552) 236,316 3,904

December 31, 2020 (Audited)

Cross currency swaps

Interest rate swaps

Counterparties
. . Mark to market . . Mark to market
Notional principal . Notional principal .
gain/ (loss) gain
Rupees '000

With banks for
Hedging - - - -
Market making 3,218,043 62,289 479,503 7,048
With other entities for
Hedging - - - -
Market making 4,574,641 (843,878) - -
Total
Hedging - - - -
Market making 7,792,684 (781,589) 479,503 7,048

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On:
Loans and advances
Investments

Lendings to financial institutions

Balances with banks

Securities purchased under resale agreements

Half Year

| June 30, 2021

Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 -----------=------

13,417,488 19,410,561
10,804,559 11,775,254
196,184 32,331
143 14,525
75,550 724,322
24,493,924 31,956,993
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28

29

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

On:

Deposits

Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Other short term borrowings

SBP borrowings

Short sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds

Bai Muajjal

Musharaka acceptances

Lease liability against right-of-use assets

Cost of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency deposits / borrowings

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees
Consumer finance related fees

Card related fees (debit and credit cards)
Credit related fees

Investment banking fees

Commission on trade

Commission on guarantees

Commission on cash management
Commission on remittances including home remittances
Commission on bancassurance
Commission on sale of funds unit

Others

GAIN ON SECURITIES

Realised - net
Unrealised - held for trading - net

Realised gain on:

Federal Government securities
Shares

Open end mutual funds
Associates

OTHER INCOME

Rent on property

Gain on sale of fixed assets - net

Gain on sale of non-banking assets - net

Loss on short sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)
Notice pay

Scrap income

Others

Note

28.1

Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------
9,541,351 14,890,009
462,408 109,358
24,763 18,078
461,870 281,259
- 42,219
- 163,004
99,952 578,818
716,959 505,778
1,271,000 2,151,215
12,578,303 18,739,738
391,631 224,217
249,999 140,439
907,927 686,403
16,980 29,051
126,265 60,516
188,293 130,388
67,148 37,721
37,914 30,107
166,898 97,284
143,238 146,606
98,832 43,304
37,025 28,805
2,432,150 1,654,841
474,616 | | 963,838
(24,373) 51,337
450,243 1,015,175
245,979 742,809
147,445 194,918
19,672 26,111
61,520 -
474,616 963,838
103,031 91,079
14,131 5,475
47,487 -
= (88,139)
221 2,442
2,635 838
273 381
167,778 12,076
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Un-audited
Note For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
30 OPERATING EXPENSES Rupees '000 -------------m-
Total compensation expense 3,877,834 3,526,673
Property expense
Rent and taxes 214,333 86,745
Insurance 24,679 25,254
Utilities cost 302,628 288,918
Security (including guards) 361,147 379,386
Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges) 266,344 229,005
Depreciation on owned fixed assets 264,314 254,657
Depreciation on non-banking assets 2,483 3,408
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 766,439 735,055
Others 41,143 34,965
2,243,510 2,037,393
Information technology expenses
Software maintenance 604,328 837,206
Hardware maintenance 114,385 152,759
Depreciation on owned fixed assets 173,718 185,009
Amortisation 63,180 97,842
Network charges 116,945 128,855
Others 304 2,025
1,072,860 1,403,696
Other operating expenses
Directors’ fees and allowances 50,160 82,541
Legal and professional charges 48,800 32,435
Outsourced services costs - staff 206,738 180,002
Travelling and conveyance 36,769 41,593
NIFT clearing charges 24,775 23,332
Depreciation on owned fixed assets 239,126 202,228
Training and development 9,175 13,571
Postage and courier charges 59,237 75,158
Communication 90,002 69,747
Marketing, advertisement and publicity 129,043 220,583
Donations 79,917 77,424
Auditors remuneration 12,045 8,217
Insurance 450,501 347,940
Stationery and printing 161,742 180,940
Bank fees and charges 90,419 63,077
Brokerage and commission 50,918 30,907
Deposit protection premium 260,117 195,328
Credit card bonus points redemption 90,402 84,735
Others 234,450 217,296
2,324,336 2,147,054
9,518,540 9,114,816
31 OTHER CHARGES
Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan 4,141 108,012
32 PROVISIONS AND WRITE-OFFS - NET
(Reversal of provision) / provision for diminution in value
of investments 12.4 (316,391) 35,054
Provision against loans and advances 13.3 506,889 1,450,453
Bad debts written-off directly 18,548 4,078
Recoveries of written-off / charged-off bad debts (197,949) (23,897)
Reversal of provision against off balance sheet obligations 21.1 (22,645) (880)
(11,548) 1,464,808
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Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------
33 TAXATION
Current 2,458,155 2,836,640
Prior periods 40,000 60,000
Deferred 27,597 (381,818)
2,525,752 2,514,822
34 BASIC / DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Un-audited
For the quarter ended For the half year ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
--------------------------------- Rupees '000 -------------mmmmmmmmmmmmmeeee
Profit after tax for the period 1,916,582 1,729,767 4,019,822 3,809,949

--- Number of shares in thousands ----

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,517,697 1,517,697 1,517,697 1,517,697

Rupees

Basic earnings per share 1.26 1.14 2.65 2.51

34.1 Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Bank does not have any convertible instruments in
issue at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option
to convert is exercised.

35 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted market
price. Quoted securities classified as held to maturity are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted equity
securities, other than investments in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the break-up
value of these investments as per their latest available audited financial statements.

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits
and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and active
market for these assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments.

35.1  Fair value of financial assets

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

June 30, 2021 (Un-audited)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On-balance sheet financial instruments Bl 111101 1< 01§
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments

Federal Government securities - 254,115,878 - 254,115,878

Shares 5,923,133 1,426,688 - 7,349,821

Non-Government debt securities 47,442,500 5,650,157 = 53,092,657
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investments

Non-Government debt securities - 9,392,586 - 9,392,586
Non-financial assets - measured at fair value
Fixed assets (land and buildings) - - 11,259,060 11,259,060
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - - 2,259,374 2,259,374
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured at fair value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - 72,726,671 - 72,726,671
Forward sale of foreign exchange - 32,439,785 - 32,439,785
Derivatives sales - 6,698,587 - 6,698,587

December 31, 2020 (Audited)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On-balance sheet financial instruments B R 011 01T 00 IR
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments

Federal Government securities - 202,016,327 - 202,016,327

Shares 5,631,735 1,477,249 - 7,108,984

Non-Government debt securities 47,510,000 6,092,828 - 53,602,828
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investments

Non-Government debt securities - 10,029,170 - 10,029,170
Non-financial assets - measured at fair value
Fixed assets (land and buildings) - - 11,259,060 11,259,060
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - - 2,683,207 2,683,207
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured at fair value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - 64,514,335 - 64,514,335
Forward sale of foreign exchange - 26,528,182 - 26,528,182
Derivatives sales - 8,272,187 - 8,272,187

The Bank’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date
when the event or change in circumstances require the Bank to exercise such transfers.
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Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2

ltem

Valuation approach and input used

Pakistan Investment Bonds / Market
Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV /
PKFRV rates.

ljara Sukuk

Fair values of GoP ljara Sukuk are derived using the PKISRV rates announced by the
Financial Market Association (FMA) through Reuters. These rates denote an average of
quotes received from different pre-defined / approved dealers / brokers.

Unlisted ordinary shares

Break-up value determined on the basis of the NAV of the company using the latest available
audited financial statements.

Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)
and Sukuk Certificates

Fair values of TFCs and Sukuk certificates are determined using the MUFAP rates.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The valuation has been determined by interpolating the mark-to-market currency rates
announced by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Derivative instruments

The Bank enters into derivative contracts with various counterparties. Derivatives that are
valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs are mainly interest rate
swaps, cross currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts. The most frequently}
applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value
calculations.

Mutual funds

Units of mutual funds are valued using the net asset value (NAV) announced by the Mutual

Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 3

Item

Valuation approach and input used

Fixed assets (land and buildings)

Land and buildings are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from their fair value. These were
last revalued on December 31, 2019.

Non-banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims

Non-banking assets acquiredin satisfaction of claims are revalued by professionally qualified
valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ

materially from their fair value. These were last revalued on December 31, 2019.

The valuations, mentioned above, are conducted by the valuation experts appointed by the Bank which are
also on the panel of the Pakistan Banks' Association (PBA). The valuation experts use a market based
approach to arrive at the fair value of the Bank's properties. The market approach uses prices and other
relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable or similar properties.

These values are adjusted to

reflect the current condition of the properties. The effect of changes in the

unobservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a quantitative
disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these condensed interim unconsolidated financial

statements.
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36

36.1

42 |

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment details with respect to business activities

Profit and loss account for the
half year ended June 30, 2021
(un-audited)

Net mark-up / return / profit

Inter segment revenue - net

Non mark-up / return / interest income

Total income

Segment direct expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Profit before tax

Statement of financial position
as at June 30, 2021
(un-audited)

Cash and bank balances

Lendings to financial institutions

Investments

- Investment provision

Net inter segment lending

Advances - performing

Advances - non-performing

- Advances - provisions

Others

Total assets

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Deposits and other accounts
Net inter segment borrowing
Others

Total liabilities

Equity

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

Half Year | June 30, 2021

2021
Retail [| cBG || Treasuy [[ sam || othes [[  Total
Rupees’000
(5:143131) 8465912 8634986 142,697 (184,843) 11,915,621
13566060 (6913745)  (7,881,369) (86,120) 1,315,168 .
2,324,200 705,391 1,561,038 18,985 (334.716) 4,274,898
10747129 2257558 2314661 75,562 795,609 16,190,519
5,731,061 171723 147,960 72,167 3,533,562 9,656,493
3,159,036 301,067 69,574 60,178 (3,589,855) -
8,890,097 472790 217534 132,345 (56,273) 9656493
(81330 1117315 (309,670) (752633) 14,770 (11,548)
1938362 667453 2406797 695,850 837,112 6,545,574
23,382,381 - 37,933,910 - 61,316,291
- 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
14968227 311600885 3,298,820 1130893 331007625
- - (1379215)  (2.081682) (3:460,897)
466,069,372 - - - (466,069,372) .
71301005 263928442 - - 5015311 340244758
3916037 4825038 - 14,922,035 34,891 23,698,001
(3196.980) (3,564,600) - (13,226,805) (267446)  (20,255,831)
1222215 3831879 1981888 (1.885.23¢) 29,980,493 46,131,241
573694030  283,983986 057607268 1027134 (430,166,230 786,181,188
7831420 B4520674 21781400 - 84,133,494
548693031 41,593,377 - 263479 1300522 591850409
- 186272515 333619654 753499 (520,645668) -
17169579 1602420 675,148 10,156 26,855,435 46,312,738
573604030 283983986 356076202 1027134 (492489711) 722296641
- - 1,561,066 - 62,323,481 63,884,547
573604030  283,083986 357637268 1027134 (430,166,230 786,181,188
16630945 91,345,291 - 1,151,836 109,128,072




Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

2020
Retal || cBG || Treasuy [[ sam || others |  Total
Rupees’000

Profit and loss account for the

half year ended June 30, 2020

(un-audited)
Net mark-up / return / profit (9,709,329) 14,547,573 8,158,787 219,256 968 13,217,255
Inter segment revenue - net 17,493,775 (12,262,006) (7,668,700) (154,638) 2,591,569 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 1,715,248 472,736 2,018,991 1,895 (265,591) 3,943,279
Total income 9,499,694 2,758,303 2,509,078 66,513 2,326,946 17,160,534
Segment direct expenses 5,436,867 263,079 165,083 57,521 3,448,399 9,370,955
Inter segment expense allocation 2,979,425 342,267 68,112 61,725 (3,451,529) -
Total expenses 8,416,292 605,346 233,195 119,252 (3,130) 9,370,955
Provisions 378,461 1,007,879 35,054 25,019 18,395 1,464,808
Profit before tax 704,941 1,145,078 2,240,829 (77,758) 2,311,681 6,324,771
Statement of financial position

as at December 31, 2020

(audited)
Cash and bank balances 29,219,828 - 33,540,008 - - 62,759,836
Lendings to financial institutions - - 2,985,000 - - 2,985,000
Investments - 16,430,902 259,865,978 3,298,820 1,111,380 280,707,080
- Investment provision - - (1,688,885) (2,088,403) - (3,777,288)
Net inter segment lending 412,879,111 - - - (412,879,111) -
Advances - performing 64,171,608 245,899,442 - - 3,448,811 313,519,861
Advances - non-performing 6,647,456 3,489,249 - 16,049,685 39,035 26,225,425
- Advances - provisions (5,245,632) (2,755,805) - (13,299,212) (264,759) (21,565,408)
Others 10,290,418 3,793,772 4,945,294 (1,881,285) 31,955,249 49,103,448
Total assets 517,962,789 266,857,560 299,647,395 2,079,605 (376,589,395) 709,957,954
Borrowings 5488813 46,412,012 6,545,691 - - 58,446,516
Subordinated debt - - - - - -
Deposits and other accounts 494,881,273 44,326,035 - 201,771 1,226,754 540,635,833
Net inter segment borrowing - 175,499,595 289,997,780 1,871,334 (467,368,709) -
Others 17,592,703 619,918 331,518 6,500 32,217,534 50,768,173
Total liabilities 517,962,789 266,857,560 296,874,989 2,079,605 (433,924,421) 649,850,522
Equity - - 2,772,406 - 57,335,026 60,107,432
Total equity and liabilities 517,962,789 266,857,560 299,647,395 2,079,605 (376,589,395) 709,957,954
Contingencies and commitments 14,672,741 64,309,145 - 1,249,878 - 80,231,764
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim

Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the half year ended June 30, 2021

38

CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum capital requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses)

Capital adequacy ratio (CAR):

Eligible common equity tier 1 (CET 1) capital
Eligible additional tier 1 (ADT 1) capital
Total eligible tier 1 capital

Eligible tier 2 capital

Total eligible capital (tier 1 + tier 2)

Risk weighted assets (RWAs):

Credit risk

Market risk

Operational risk

Total

Common equity tier 1 capital adequacy ratio (in %)
Tier 1 Capital adequacy ratio (in %)
Total Capital adequacy ratio (in %)
Leverage ratio (LR):

Eligible tier-1 capital

Total exposures

Leverage ratio (in %)

Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR):
Total high quality liquid assets

Total net cash outflow

Liquidity coverage ratio (Ratio)

Net stable funding ratio (NSFR):
Total available stable funding

Total required stable funding
Net stable funding ratio (in %)

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
15,176,965 15,176,965
53,928,653 49,714,043
53,928,653 49,714,043
8,190,160 8,503,577
62,118,813 58,217,620
254,747,273 238,337,872
23,436,969 21,979,018
51,445,036 51,445,036
329,629,278 311,761,926
16.36% 15.95%
16.36% 15.95%
18.85% 18.67%
53,928,653 49,714,043
950,013,587 833,578,134
5.68% 5.96%
315,223,748 265,715,345
141,596,395 125,951,241
2.226 2.110
544,204,756 498,425,675
331,458,987 291,491,198
164.18% 169.28%
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

39 ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

The Bank is operating 500 Islamic banking branches (December 31, 2020: 500) including 1 Islamic sub-
branch (December 31, 2020: 1). The statement of financial position and profit and loss account of these

48 |

branches for the period ended June 30, 2021 are as follows: Un-audited Audited

June 30, December 31,
Statement of financial position Note 2021 2020

77777777777777777 Rupees '000 ------------------

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 23,706,574 21,763,033
Balances with other banks 4,887,818 1,929,779
Due from financial institutions 391 35,850,000 28,000,000
Investments 39.2 67,612,461 67,554,233
Islamic financing and related assets - net 39.3 254,755,941 189,941,639
Fixed assets 13,520,878 14,904,507
Intangible assets 179,192 136,688
Other assets 11,203,362 6,278,487

411,716,226 330,508,366
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 7,076,251 6,029,790
Due to financial institutions 57,364,636 47,086,694
Deposits and other accounts 39.4 291,086,991 248,090,892
Due to head office 273,514 2,328,964
Other liabilities 30,949,196 11,198,497

386,750,588 314,734,837
NET ASSETS 24,965,638 15,773,529
REPRESENTED BY
Islamic banking fund 17,180,000 9,180,000
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 1,485,117 1,468,656
Unappropriated profit 39.5 6,300,521 5,124,873

24,965,638 15,773,529
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 39.6
Un-audited
Note For the half year ended

June 30, June 30,
Profit and loss account ,20?1 Rupees '000 ,020 ,,,,,,,,,
Profit / return earned 39.7 11,542,456 10,060,235
Profit / return expensed 39.8 4,567,514 4,950,082
Net profit / return 6,974,942 5,110,153
Other income
Fee and commission income 812,210 338,176
Foreign exchange income 174,023 73,764
Gain on securities 16,372 -
Others 68,197 3,136
Total other income 1,070,802 415,076
Total income 8,045,744 5,625,229
Other expenses
Operating expenses 4,667,175 | | 2,955,710
Other charges 5 47,012
Total other expenses 4,667,180 3,002,722
Profit before provisions 3,378,564 2,522,507
Provisions and write offs - net 1,451,272 56,049
Profit before taxation 1,927,292 2,466,458
Taxation 751,644 961,919
Profit after taxation 1,175,648 1,504,539
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim

Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the half year ended June 30, 2021

39.1

39.2

39.3

Due from financial institutions

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020

-- Rupees '000

Musharaka placement 35,850,000 28,000,000
Investments by segments:
Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Coslt [} Provision Canying Cos-t [} Provision Surplus Canying
amortised for Surplus amortised for -
cost Lo value cost A (deficit) value
Ripees '000
Federal Government
- jarah Sukuks 34,691,128 207,703 || 34,898,831 34,434,037 (27,948) 34,406,089
- Bai Muajjal
Government of
Pakistan 1,697,048 1,597,048 1,697,048 1,697,048
- Other Federal
Government
securities 1,138,895 - 1,138,895 466,435 - 466,435
37,427,071 207,703 37,634,774 36,497,520 (27,948) 36,469,572
Shares
- Listed companies 100,000 100,000
Non Government
Debt securities:
-Listgd | 15,000,000 " - " 18,079 " 15,018,079 || 15,000,000 || " 410.0ﬂ 15,410,000
- Unlisted 14,442,108 - 417,500 14,859,608 15,663,124 11,537 15,674,661
29,442,108 435,579 29,877,687 30,663,124 421,537 31,084,661
Total investments 66,969,179 643,282 67612461 67,160,644 393,589 67,554,233
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
Islamic financing and related assets -net = e Rupees '000 --------=--=====--
Murabaha 6,061,640 2,802,616
Musharaka 7,164 7,194
Diminishing Musharaka 127,115,944 102,902,725
Istisna 22,003,660 17,760,768
Tawwaruq 1,375,449 55,002
Running Musharaka 47,605,956 37,086,503
Fixed assets ljarah financing - net 69,715 78,056
Tijarah 124,898 232,113
Advance against Murabaha financing 1,827,983 1,267,610
Advanced against Diminishing Musharaka 25,977,904 16,552,367
Advance against ljarah 624,922 937,383
Advance against Istisna 12,058,322 6,890,624
Advance against Islamic export refinance 5,682,287 2,650,700
Advance against Tijarah 101,896 -
Advance against Tawwarug 33,285 -
Musawamah 53,175 -
Bai salam 209,110 -
Salam 110,000 -
Inventory related to Islamic financing 6,425,550 1,974,625
Gross Islamic financing and related assets 257,463,860 191,198,286
Less: provision against Islamic financings
- specific (2,502,107)| | (1,094,130)
- general (205,812) (162,517)
(2,707,919) (1,256,647)
Islamic financing and related assets - net of provision 254,755,941 189,941,639
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

39.4 Deposits

Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
In local In foreign In local In foreign
currency currencies Total currency currencies Total
Rupees '000
Customers
Current deposits 122,143,120 9,955,747 132,098,867 82,149,540 8,463,757 90,613,297
Savings deposits 101,048,702 6,406,649 107,455,351 95,053,032 6,078,395 101,131,427
Term deposits 30,460,975 182,111 30,643,086 45,612,885 245,025 45,857,910
253,652,797 16,544,507 270,197,304 222,815,457 14,787 177 237,602,634
Financial institutions
Current deposits 232,078 7,614 239,692 171,270 78 171,348
Savings deposits 15,056,445 - 15,056,445 8,426,214 7,646 8,433,860
Term deposits 5,593,550 - 5,593,550 1,883,050 - 1,883,050
20,882,073 7614 20,889,687 10,480,534 7,724 10,488,258
274,534,870 16,552,121 291,086,991 233,295,991 14,794,901 248,090,892
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
----------------- Rupees '000 ------------------
39.5 Islamic banking business unappropriated profit
Opening balance 5,124,873 2,794,403
Add: Islamic Banking profit for the period / year 1,927,292 3,820,444
Less: taxation (751,644) (1,489,974)
Closing balance 6,300,521 5,124,873
39.6 Contingencies and commitments
Guarantees 20,174,555 12,003,581
Commitments 62,182,341 50,760,337
82,356,896 62,763,918
Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
39.7 Profit/ return earned of financing, investments and placement
Profit earned on:
Financing 7,872,142 8,106,768
Investments 3,670,314 1,953,467
11,542,456 10,060,235
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ---------------—--
39.8 Profit on deposits and other dues expensed

Deposits and other accounts 3,262,817 3,038,293
Other short term borrowings 869,369 1,551,136
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 435,328 360,653

4,567,514 4,950,082

40 GENERAL

Comparative information has been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these condensed
interim unconsolidated financial statements, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison and to conform with
changes in presentation in the current period. There have been no significant reclassifications during the
period.

41 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 26, 2021 has declared an interim cash divided of Rs.
0.5 i.e 5% (June 30,2020: Nil). The condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements for the half year
ended June 30, 2021 do not include the effect of this appropriation which will be accounted for in the
unconsolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2021.

42 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on August 26, 2021
by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Directors’ Report

Consolidated Financial Statements

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the Directors’ Report of Faysal
Bank Limited Group, along with unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements
for the quarter and half year ended June 30, 2021.

Group Profile

Faysal Bank Limited (FBL) has 99.9% shareholding in Faysal Asset Management Limited
(FAML). FAML is an unlisted public limited company registered as a Non-Banking Finance
Company (NBFC), licensed to carry out asset management and investment advisory services
under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003 and the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

FBL also has significant influence based on its holding in the following open-ended mutual
funds managed by FAML.

Associates % Holding
Faysal Income & Growth Fund 71.99%
Faysal Cash Fund 91.10%
Faysal Savings Growth Fund 27.38%

FBL Group structure is as follows:

Holding Company : Faysal Bank Limited
Subsidiary . Faysal Asset Management Limited

Financial Highlights:
Rs. in million

Key Balance Sheet Numbers June 21 December 20  Growth%
Investment 327,105 276,470 18.3%
Financing 343,687 318,180 8.0%
Total Assets 786,324 710,064 10.7%
Deposits 591,817 540,632 9.5%
Profit & Loss Account June '21 June 20 Growth%
Total Revenue 16,299 17,217 -5.3%
Non-Markup Expenses 9,740 9,436 3.2%
Profit before tax & provisions 6,559 7,781 -15.7%
Share of profit of associates 67 - 100%
Net Provisions (12) 1,465 -100.8%
Profit before tax 6,638 6,316 51%
Tax 2,570 2,622 1.9%
Profit after tax 4,068 3,794 7.2%
Earnings per share (Rupees) 2.68 2.50
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Despite a significant reduction in banking spreads due to reduction in markup rates, Faysal
Bank’s consolidated profit after tax for the half year ended June 30, 2021 at PKR 4,068 million is
7.2% higher than corresponding period of previous year. The Group was able to protect its
margins by aggressively growing its low-cost core deposits. Consequently, Earnings Per Share
in the first half of 2021 was PKR 2.68 as compared to PKR 2.50 in the first half of last year.

FAML continued to show improvement in performance. Assets Under Management (AUMs)
have grown by 30.8% over December 2020 to PKR 62 billion. One of the reasons for growth in
AUMs is that Faysal Bank is effectively leveraging its branch network to generate Faysal Funds
sales in targeted customer segments.

FAML has recorded profit after tax of PKR 115.4 million during the half year under review as
against a loss of PKR 15.9 million during the last year. This shows remarkable turnaround in
operating performance of the entity post acquisition of control by FBL.

FAML strives to enhance its product suite and has acquired Private Fund Management and
REIT Management licenses in the second quarter of 2021.

Credit Rating

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) and Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA)
have re-affirmed the following entity ratings to Faysal Bank Ltd:

Long-Term AA
Short-Term Al+
‘Stable’ outlook has been assigned to the ratings by both the rating agencies.

VIS has recently upgraded Management Quality Rating (MQR) of FAML to AM2+. The rating
signifies asset manager exhibiting very good management characteristics. The rating upgrade
reflects improvement in market share, growing proportion of retail investments in relation to total
AUMSs, growth in advisory portfolio and capitalization. During the eighteen months post
acquisition by FBL, the MQR of FAML has been upgraded by three notches.

Holding Company

Ithmaar Bank B.S.C (closed), a banking entity regulated by the Central Bank of Bahrain is the
parent company holding directly and indirectly, 66.78% (2020: 66.78%) of the shareholding in
Faysal Bank Limited. Ithmaar Bank B.S.C. (closed) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ithmaar
Holdings B.S.C. and Dar Al-Maal Al-Islami Trust (DMIT) is the holding company of Ithmaar
Holding B.S.C. and is the ultimate parent of the Group. DMIT was formed by indenture under
the laws of the Commonwealth of The Bahamas for the purpose of conducting business affairs
in conformity with Islamic law, principles and tradition.
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Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors has declared an interim cash dividend of Rs. 0.5 per share i.e 5% (June
30, 2020: Nil)

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board & Management of the Group, we would like to take this opportunity to
thank the shareholders and valued customers for the trust they have reposed in the Bank. We
are also grateful to the State Bank of Pakistan and Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan for their continued support and guidance. We would also like to express sincere
appreciation for the Shariah Board for their guidance and employees of the Group for their
dedication and hard work.

Approval

In compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2017, this Directors’ Report with the
recommendation of the Board Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has been approved
by the Directors in their meeting held on August 26, 2021 and signed by the Chief Executive
Officer and a director.

President & CEO Chairman
Karachi
Dated: August 26, 2021
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2021

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital
Reserves

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net
Unappropriated profit

Total equity attributable to the equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

18
19
20

21
22

23

24

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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CHAIRMAN

Un-audited Audited

June 30, December 31,

2021 2020

—————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
54,908,463 59,881,290
6,407,933 2,878,630
7,500,000 2,985,000
327,104,994 276,469,824
343,686,928 318,179,878
24,159,536 24,102,155
1,950,676 1,894,204
20,605,231 23,673,221
786,323,761 710,064,202
13,915,475 13,543,270
84,133,494 58,446,516
591,816,574 540,632,217
1,473,115 1,682,351
30,941,452 35,641,746
722,280,110 649,846,100
64,043,651 60,218,102
15,176,965 15,176,965
11,007,600 11,032,647
8,569,163 9,027,473
29,289,893 24,981,002
64,043,621 60,218,087
30 15
64,043,651 60,218,102
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR



Condensed Interim Consolidated Profit and Loss Account (Un-audited)

For the quarter and half year ended June 30, 2021

Note

Mark-up / return / interest earned 26
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 27
Net mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee and commission income 28
Dividend income

Foreign exchange income

(Loss) / Income from derivatives

Gain on securities 29
Other income / (loss) 30
Total non mark-up / interest income

Total income
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES

Operating expenses 31
Workers Welfare Fund

Other charges 32
Total non mark-up / interest expenses

Share of profit of associates 13.6
Profit before provisions

Provisions and write-offs - net 33
Extra ordinary / unusual items

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation 34
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Basic / diluted earnings per share 35

Quarter ended Half year ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees '000

12,468,250 14,755,131 24,497,196 31,957,073
5,993,485 8,063,562 12,574,396 18,738,842
6,474,765 6,691,569 11,922,800 13,218,231
1,438,558 653,934 2,654,068 1,714,253
105,172 179,546 188,017 239,888
513,720 596,353 1,025,768 928,564
(13,438) 10,508 (44,875) 101,043
47,627 552,500 398,602 1,023,946
58,684 43,662 154,845 (9,265)
2,150,323 2,036,503 4,376,425 3,998,429
8,625,088 8,728,072 16,299,225 17,216,660
4,960,122 4,516,661 9,602,102 9,179,312
57,555 73,528 133,812 148,127
4,136 105 4,141 108,012
5,021,813 4,590,294 9,740,055 9,435,451

15,672 - 67,387 -
3,618,947 4137778 6,626,557 7,781,209
521,180 1,245,045 (11,548) 1,464,808
3,097,767 2,892,733 6,638,105 6,316,401
1,144,723 1,153,303 2,569,849 2,522,380
1,953,044 1,739,430 4,068,256 3,794,021
1,953,034 1,739,432 4,068,241 3,794,023
10 2 15 (2)
1,953,044 1,739,430 4,068,256 3,794,021

Rupees
1.29 1.15 2.68 2.50

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

CHAIRMAN

June 30, 2021 |

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-audited)
For the quarter and half year ended June 30, 2021

Quarter ended Half year ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees '000
Profit after taxation for the period 1,953,044 1,739,430 4,068,256 3,794,021
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that may be reclassified to the profit and
loss account in subsequent periods:
- Movement in surplus on revaluation of
investments - net of tax 331,977 (910,305) (217,660) (985,421)
Total comprehensive income 2,285,021 829,125 3,850,596 2,808,600
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 2,285,011 829,127 3,850,581 2,808,602
Non-controlling interest 10 (2) 15 (2)
2,285,021 829,125 3,850,596 2,808,600

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

Balance as at January 1, 2020 (audited)

Profit after taxation for the half year ended
June 30, 2020

Other comprehensive loss - net of tax
Total comprehensive (loss) / income

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax

Amortisation of intangible assets - customer
relationship - net of tax

Balance as at June 30, 2020 (un-audited)

Profit after taxation for the period from
July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020

Other comprehensive (loss) / income - net of tax,
Total comprehensive (loss) / income

Transfer to statutory reserve

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax

Amortisation of intangible assets - customer
relationship - net of tax

Balance as at December 31, 2020 (audited)

Profit after taxation for the half year
ended June 30, 2021

Other comprehensive loss - net of tax
Total comprehensive (loss) / income

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of
non-banking assets - net of tax

Amortisation of intangible assets - customer
relationship - net of tax

Balance as at June 30, 2021 (un-audited)

PRESIDENT & CEO

Reserves Surplus / (deficit)
Capital reserves on revaluation of
Non-distri-
butable X
Share capital | Reserve Fixed Unappro- | Non-
. i Statutory assets | priated  [controlling|  Total
capital Share reserve | arising on Total Invest- y .
N reserve non- Total profit interest
premium | (NCR)- amal- ments bankin
gainon | gamation tg
bargain assets
purchase
Rupees '000
15176965 10,131 475930 23952 9,320,945 9,830,958 3383915 7,364,165 10,748,080 19,449,413 1 55,205,427
- - - - 3,794,023 (2) 3,794,021
- - - - (985421) (985.421) - (985.421)
- - - - (985421) (985421) 3,794,023 (2) 2,808,600
- - - - - (67,707)  (67,707) 57,707
(58,591) - - (58,591) (58,591)
15176965 10,131 417339 23952 9,320,945 9,772,367 2398494 7,306458 9,704,952 23,301,143 9 57955436
- - - - 2,886,594 6 2,886,600
- - - - (619.769) (619,769) 37,656 (582,113)
- - - - (619.769) (619,769) 2,924,250 6 2304487
- - 1,302,101 1,302,101 (1,302,101)
. . . . - (BTTI0)  (57710) 5770
(41,821) - - (41,821) (41,821)
15176965 10,131 375518 23,952 10,623,046 11,032,647 1778725 7,248748 9,027,473 24,981,002 15 60,218,102
- - - - - 4,068,241 15 4,068,256
- - - - (217,660 (217,660) - (217,660
- - - - (217,660) (217,660) 4,068,241 15 3,850,596
- o - - - (68,112)  (58,112) 58,112 -
- - - - - (182538) (182,538) 182,538 -
(25,047) - - (25,047) - (25,047)
15176965 10,131 350471 23952 10,623,046 11,007,600 1,561,065 7,008,098 8,569,163 29,289,893 30 64,043,651
The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Condensed Interim Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2021

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Less: dividend income

Less: share of profit of associates

Adjustments:
Depreciation on owned fixed assets 31
Amortisation of intangible assets 31
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 31
Depreciation on non-banking assets 31
Workers Welfare Fund
Provision against loans and advances - net 33
(Reversal of provision) / provision for diminution in value of investments - net 33
Reversal of provision against off balance sheet obligations - net 33
Unrealised loss / (gain) on securities - held for trading - net
Gain on sale of fixed assets - net 30
Gain on sale of non-banking assets - net 30
Charge for defined benefit plan
Loss / (income) from derivative contracts - net
Mark-up / return / interest expensed - leased liability against right-of-use assets 27
Bad debts written off directly 33

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions
Held-for-trading securities
Advances
Others assets

Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable
Borrowings from financial institutions
Deposits
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation)

Income tax paid
Contribution to gratuity fund
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investment in available for sale securities
Net (investment) / divestment in associates

Net divestment in held to maturity securities
Dividends received

Investment in operating fixed assets
Investment in intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of non-banking assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liability against right-of-use assets
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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CHAIRMAN

Half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 --------====------
6,638,105 6,316,401
(188,017) (239,888)
(67,387) -
6,382,701 6,076,513
678,488 642,733
63,242 97,842
763,971 735,055
2,483 3,408
133,812 148,127
506,889 1,450,453
(316,391) 35,054
(22,645) (880)
19,022 (52,555)
(14,131) (5,744)
(47,487) -
108,079 60,625
44,875 (101,043)
713,954 505,745
18,548 4,078
2,652,709 3,522,898
9,035,410 9,599,411
(4,515,000) (6,893,000)
(49,198,460) 5,518,572
(26,032,487) 7,288,149
2,641,345 (4,763,335)
(77,104,602) 1,150,386
372,205 3,629,738
25,012,152 (23,479,605)
51,184,357 38,580,667
(5,195,472) 3,950,540
71,373,242 22,681,340
(2,612,033) (943,054)
(105,832) (93,094)
586,185 32,394,989
(2,196,203) (37,274,160)
(252,573) 1,037,650
1,020,002 -
118,406 111,825
(846,973) (738,129)
(160,777) (74,109)
15,266 6,346
468,837 -
(1,834,015) (36,930,577)
(870,494)| | (912,011)
(26) (19)
(870,520) (912,030)
(2,118,350) (5,447,618)
61,126,589 62,765,354
59,008,239 57,317,736
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR



Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

1.1

11.2

21

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The "Group" consists of:

(i) Faysal Bank Limited - Holding Company

(ii) Faysal Asset Management Limited - Subsidiary Company
Holding Company - Faysal Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited (the Bank or the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 3, 1994 as
a public limited company under the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the
Companies Act, 2017). Its shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Bank is mainly
engaged in Conventional and Islamic Corporate, Commercial and Consumer banking activities. The Bank is
operating through 575 branches (December 31, 2020: 554 branches) and 1 sub-branch (December 31, 2020:
1 sub-branch). Out of these, 500 (December 31, 2020: 414) are Islamic banking branches and 76 (December
31, 2020: 141) are conventional banking branches.

The registered office of the Bank is located at Faysal House, ST-02, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Ithmaar Bank B.S.C (closed), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ithmaar Holdings B.S.C is the parent company of
the Bank, holding directly and indirectly 66.78% (December 31, 2020: 66.78%) of the shareholding of the
Bank. Dar Al-Maal Al-Islami Trust (DMIT), ultimate parent of the Bank, is the holding company of Ithmaar
Holdings B.S.C.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and VIS Credit Rating Company Limited have
determined the Bank’s long-term rating as 'AA’ (December 31, 2020: 'AA’) and the short term rating as 'A1+’
(December 31, 2020: 'A1+’) on June 30, 2021 and June 26, 2021 respectively.

Subsidiary Company - Faysal Asset Management Limited

Percentage of holding

June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
Faysal Asset Management Limited - Subsidiary 99.99% 99.99%

Faysal Asset Management Limited (the Subsidiary Company) was incorporated in Pakistan under the
provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) on August 6, 2003 as an
unlisted public limited company. The Subsidiary Company commenced its operations on November 14, 20083.
The registered office of the Subsidiary Company is located at 7th Floor, West Wing, Faysal House, ST-02,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

The Subsidiary Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC), licensed to carry out asset
management and investment advisory services under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment
and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
(NBFC Regulations).

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has assigned Asset Management rating of AM2+ on August 10, 2021
(December 31, 2020: AM2).

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to
Islamic modes, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible
forms of trade related modes of financing include purchase of goods by banks from their customers and
immediate resale to them at appropriate mark-up in price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and
sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these condensed interim consolidated financial
statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilised and the appropriate portion of
profit thereon.

June 30,2021 | Half Year | 63



Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

2.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

64 |

The financial results of the Islamic banking branches have been consolidated in these condensed interim
consolidated financial statements for reporting purposes after eliminating inter branch transactions and
balances. The financial results of all the Islamic banking branches are disclosed in note 40 to these
condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Bank and the financial
statements of the Subsidiary Company from the date from which control of the Subsidiary Company by the
Group commences until the date on which control ceases. The financial statements of the Subsidiary
Company are incorporated on a line-by-line basis and the investment held by the Bank is eliminated against
the corresponding share capital and pre-acquisition reserve of the Subsidiary Company in the consolidated
financial statements.

The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Holding Company, using accounting policies that are generally consistent with those of the Holding Company.

Material intra-group balances and transactions are eliminated.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial
and operating policies. Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control
established by contractual agreement. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34 'Interim financial reporting’ issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of, and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP).

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the
directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IAS 34 or IFAS, the requirements of
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

As per the directive of the SBP through its letter BPRD (R&P-02)/625-99/2011/3744 dated March 28, 2011,
gain arising on bargain purchase of Pakistan operations of Royal Bank of Scotland (ex-RBS Pakistan) was
credited directly into equity as Non-distributable Capital Reserve (NCR). The SBP allowed the Holding
Company to adjust the amortisation of intangible assets against the portion of reserve which arose on account
of such assets identified as a result of such acquisition. Accordingly, during the period ended June 30, 2021,
the Group has adjusted amortisation of intangible assets net of tax amounting to Rs. 25.047 million (June 30,
2020: Rs. 58.591 million) from the NCR.

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures
required in the audited annual consolidated financial statements, and are limited based on the format
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan through BPRD Circular Letter No. 05 dated March 22, 2019 and IAS
34, and should be read in conjunction with the audited annual consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2020.

Half Year | June 30, 2021



Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

4.4 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards
that are effective in the current period:

4.41 There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not to be relevant or
do not have any significant effect on the Group’s operations and are therefore not detailed in these condensed
interim consolidated financial statements.

4.5 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards
that are not yet effective:

4.51 The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the accounting and
reporting standards would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards,
amendments or interpretations:

Effective date (annual periods

Standards, interpretations or amendments beginning on or after)
- IFRS 9 - 'Financial instruments’ January 1, 2022*
- |AS 16 - 'Property, plant and equipment’ (amendments) January 1, 2022
- |1AS 37 - ’Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ (amendments)  January 1, 2022
- IFRS 3 - 'Business combinations’ (amendments) January 1, 2022
- IAS 1 - 'Presentation of financial statements’ (amendments) January 1, 2023

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards and amendments on the
condensed interim consolidated financial statements of the Group.

*The SBP vide its BPRD Circular No. 24 dated July 5, 2021 has notified the effective date of IFRS 9, 'Financial
instruments’ as January 1, 2022. IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’ has replaced IAS 39, 'Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’. The standard addresses recognition, classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard has also introduced a new impairment
model for financial assets which requires recognition of impairment charge based on 'expected credit losses’
(ECL) approach rather than 'incurred credit losses’ approach. The ECL has an impact on all the assets of the
Bank which are exposed to credit risk.

4.5.2 There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or
will not have any significant effect on the Group’s operations and are therefore not detailed in these
condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these condensed interim consolidated financial
statements are the same as applied in the preparation of the annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

6 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for certain fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims which
have been carried at revalued amounts, certain investments and derivative contracts which have been
marked to market and are carried at fair value, obligations in respect of staff retirement benefits and lease
liabilities which have been carried at present value and right-of-use assets which are initially measured at an
amount equal to the corresponding lease liabilities (adjusted for any lease payments and certain specified
costs) and depreciated over the respective lease terms.

7 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Items included in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. These condensed interim
consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and
presentation currency.
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

8

9.1

9.2
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The basis for accounting estimates adopted in the preparation of these condensed interim consolidated
financial statements is the same as that applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Holding Company for the year ended December 31, 2020, except for a change in the accounting estimate
for useful lives of certain categories of fixed assets, as disclosed in more details in note 15.4 to these
condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Group are consistent with those
disclosed in the condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.

COVID-19 has impacted banks in Pakistan on a number of fronts including increase mainly in credit risk
pertaining to the loans and advances portfolio, continuity of business operations and managing cybersecurity
threat as an ever increasing number of customers are being encouraged to use digital channels. Major
aspects of COVID-19 on the Group’s risk management policies in the areas of credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk have been discussed below.

The risk management function of the Holding Company is regularly conducting assessments of the credit
portfolio to identify borrowers most likely to get affected due to changes in the business and economic
environment. During the year ended 2020, the SBP had responded to the crisis and took regulatory measures
to provide an impetus to economic activity. The SBP, amongst other reliefs, allowed the banks to defer
borrowers’ principal loan repayments by one year and / or restructure / reschedule loans for borrowers who
required relief of principal repayments exceeding one year and / or mark-up with no reflection on credit
history. The Holding Company had provided few reliefs, deferred certain borrowers’ principal loan repayments
and restructured / rescheduled loans as per the SBP directives. At present there is no major impact on loans
where reliefs were provided on principal loan repayments deferred last year that are due for repayments
during the half year ended June 30, 2021. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2020, the
management of the Holding Company exercised prudence and recognised a general provision in addition to
the requirements of the Prudential Regulations amounting to Rs 250 million against its performing consumer
portfolio keeping in view the impacts of COVID-19. The management of the Group has maintained this
provision in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements. The Holding Company is also closely
monitoring the deferred / restructured protfolio as the deferment period is going to be expired in the near
future.

With regards to the liquidity risk, the Group remains confident that the liquidity buffer currently maintained is
sufficient to cater any adverse movement in cash flow maturity profile, having liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) at
222.3% (December 31, 2020: 211.2%) and net stable funding ratio (NSFR) at 164.16% (December 31, 2020:
169.25%) as at June 30, 2021.

Moreover, the Pakistan Stock Exchange has shown a positive trend in the current period reflecting increasing
stability of the industries operating in the country. As a result, no impairment loss is required to be recognised
on the available-for-sale listed equity securities by the Group in these condensed interim consolidated
financial statements (June 30, 2020: Rs 379.63 million).

With regards to the operational risk, the Group is closely monitoring the situation and has invoked required
actions to ensure the safety and security of its staff and uninterrupted service to customers. The senior
management of the Group is continuously monitoring the situation and is taking timely decisions to resolve any
concerns.
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

10

1"

12

121

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
- local currency 12,533,763 13,650,096
- foreign currencies 1,002,559 6,147,826
13,536,322 19,797,922
With State Bank of Pakistan in
- local currency current accounts 25,209,163 25,323,730
- foreign currency current accounts 2,032,314 2,121,802
- foreign currency deposit accounts 3,790,308 3,860,816
31,031,785 31,306,348
With National Bank of Pakistan in
- local currency current accounts 8,223,269 8,202,707
Prize bonds 2,117,087 574,313
54,908,463 59,881,290
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
- in current accounts 1,146,938 645,273
- in saving accounts 67 72
1,147,005 645,345
Outside Pakistan
- in current accounts 5,260,928 2,233,285
6,407,933 2,878,630
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Call money lendings 7,500,000 -
Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) - 2,985,000
7,500,000 2,985,000
Securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions
Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Further Further
Held by given as Total Held by given as Total
Group | collateral Group || collateral
Rupees '000
Pakistan Investment Bonds - - - 2,985,000 - 2,985,000
- - - 2,985,000 - 2,985,000
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021
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INVESTMENTS

Investments by type:

Held-for-trading securities
Federal Government securities
Shares

Available-for-sale securities
Federal Government securities
Shares
Non Government debt securities

Held-to-maturity securities
Federal Government securities
Non Government debt securities

Associates *
Faysal Income & Growth Fund
Faysal Cash Fund
Faysal Islamic Stock Fund
Faysal Asset Allocation Fund
Faysal Savings Growth Fund

Total Investments - net
* related parties

Bai Muajjal - gross
Less: deferred income

Less: profit receivable shown in other assets

Bai Muajjal - net

Un-audited Audited
Note June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Cost/ Provision Surplus / Carmyin Cost/ Provision Carmyin
Amortised for p” ving Amortised for Surplus Tving
SN (Deficit) value Lo value
cost diminution cost diminution
Rupees '000
55,595,744 - 2220 || 55,597,964 6,534,053 - 418 6,534,471
735,937 - (19,738), 716,199 599,168 - 1,086 600,254
56,331,681 - (17,518) 56,314,163 7133221 - 1,504 7,134,725
13.3 | 198,348,914 - 169,000 || 198,517,914 || 195,466,018 - 15,838 || 195,481,856
8,182,346 1,379,215 (70,981) 6,732,150 8,421,544 1,688,885 376,325 7,108,984
51,191,340 559,787 2,461,104 || 53,092,657 || 51,638,835 559,787 2,523,780 53,602,828
257,722,600 1,939,002 2559,123 258,342,721 255,526,397 2,248,672 2915943 256,193,668
132 1,597,048 - - 1,597,048 1,597,048 - - 1,597,048
135 | 10,811,454 1,521,895 - 9,289,559 |[ 11,831,456 1,528,616 - 10,302,840
12,408,502 1,521,895 - 10,886,607 13,428,504 1,528,616 - 11,899,888
136
792,374 - - 792,374 267,056 - 267,056
103,482 - - 103,482 - - -
- - - - 236,820 - 236,820
- - - - 51,158 - 51,158
665,647 - - 665,647 686,509 - 686,509
1,561,503 - - 1,561,503 1,241,543 - 1,241,543
328,024,286 3,460,897 2,541,605 327,104994 277,329,665 3,777,288 2917447 276,469,824
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
2,212,625 2,212,625
(93,236) (194,895)
(522,341) (420,682)
1,597,048 1,597,048

This represents Bai Muajjal with Government of Pakistan which carry mark-up at the rate of 12.84% per annum
(December 31, 2020: 12.84%) maturing in December, 2021,

Investments given as collateral

- Market treasury bills

Half Year
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Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 ------------------
11,500,000 -




Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 -----------==---=-
13.4  Provision for diminution in value of investments
13.4.1 Opening balance 3,777,288 3,849,281
Charge / (reversals)
Charge for the period / year - 379,785
Reversals for the period / year (6,721) (14,982)
Reversals on disposals (309,670) (436,796)
(316,391) (71,993)
Closing balance 3,460,897 3,777,288
Un-audited Audited
13.4.2 Particulars of provision against debt securities June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Non- Non-
performing || Provision |[performing|| Provision
Category of classification investment investment
—————————————————————————————— Rupees '000 --------------mmmnommmemme
Domestic
- Loss 2,081,682 2,081,682 2,088,403 2,088,403
13.5 The market value of non government debt securities classified as held-to-maturity as at June 30, 2021
amounted to Rs. 9,392.586 million (December 31, 2020: Rs. 10,029.170 million).
13.6 Movement of investment in associates
As at June 30, 2021
Investment /
Country Investment at (redemption) Dividend Investment at
of incorpo- || % Holding ||the beginning of . iy Share of profit R the end of the
R . during the received N
ration the period : period
period
Rupees '000
Associates
Faysal Income & Growth Fund  Pakistan 71.99% 267,056 533,944 14171 (22,797) 792,374
Faysal Cash Fund Pakistan 91.10% - 103,482 3,394 (3,394) 103,482
Faysal Islamic Stock Fund Pakistan 13.56% 236,820 (261,520) 24,700 - -
Faysal Asset Allocation Fund Pakistan 8.32% 51,158 (56,196) 5,038 = =
Faysal Savings Growth Fund Pakistan 27.38% 686,509 - 20,085 (40,947) 665,647
1,241,643 319,710 67,387 (67,137) 1,561,503
As at December 31, 2020
Country Investment at Investment / Dividend Investment at
of incorpo-|| % Holding the beginning of (redemption) || Share of profit ) the end of the
) ) received
ration the year during the year year
Rupees '000
Associates
Faysal Income & Growth Fund  Pakistan 40.67% 268,625 - 26,672 (28,241) 267,056
Faysal Islamic Stock Fund Pakistan 37.64% - 200,000 41,860 (5,040) 236,820
Faysal Asset Allocation Fund Pakistan 28.12% - 34,279 17,665 (786) 51,158
Faysal Savings Growth Fund Pakistan 21.54% 693,247 - 69,973 (76,711) 686,509
961,872 234,279 156,170 (110,778) 1,241,543
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14.1

14.2

70 |

ADVANCES

Note Performing Non performing Total
Un-audited Audited Un-audited Audited Un-audited Audited
June 30, || December 31, June 30, December 31,(| June 30, December 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees '000

Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc. 85,625,827 119,418,082 20,075,203 22,406,562 105,701,030 141,824,644

Islamic financing and related assets 254,264,691 189,951,257 3,199,169 3,204,935 257,463,860 193,246,192
Bills discounted and purchased 354,240 4,150,522 423,629 523,928 777,869 4,674,450
Advances - gross 340,244,758 313,519,861 23,698,001 26,225425 363,942,759 339,745,286
Provision against advances 143

- specific (19,377,700)(| (20,649,632)]| (19,377,700)| (20,649,632)

- general (878,131) (915,776)

- - (878,131) (915,776)
(878,131) (915,776)  (19,377,700)  (20,649,632)  (20,255,831)  (21,565,408)
Advances - net of provision 339,366,627 312,604,085 4,320,301 5575793 343686928 318,179,878
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
Particulars of advances (gross) T e
- in local currency 362,105,189 339,106,568
- in foreign currency 1,837,570 638,718
363,942,759 339,745,286

Advances include Rs. 23,698.001 million (December 31, 2020: Rs. 26,225.425 million) which have been
placed under non-performing status as detailed below:-

Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Category of classification Non-_ e Non-. e
performing Provision performing Provision
loans loans
—————————————————————————————————— Rupees '000
Domestic
- other assets especially mentioned 239,467 69 204,782 -
- substandard 1,081,282 95,848 2,727,006 541,529
- doubtful 790,299 218,648 900,979 237,209
- loss 21,586,953 19,063,135 22,392,658 19,870,894
Total 23,698,001 19,377,700 26,225,425 20,649,632

Half Year | June 30, 2021




Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

14.3

14.3.1

14.3.2

14.3.3

Particulars of provision against advances

Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Specific | | General I | Total Specific | | General | | Total
Rupees '000
Opening balance 20,649,632 915,776 21,565,408 23,475,724 761,951 24,237,675
Exchange adjustment (21,567) - (21,567) 25,095 - 25,095
Charge for the period / year 1,650,615 = 1,650,615 3,610,762 250,000 3,860,762
Reversals during the period / year (1,106,081) (37,645)[|  (1,143,726) (1,485,958) (96,175) (1,582,133)
544,534 (37,645) 506,889 2,124,804 153,825 2,278,629
Amounts written off (1,794,899) = (1,794,899) (4,975,991) - (4,975,991)
Closing balance 19,377,700 878,131 20,255,831 20,649,632 915,776 21,565,408

As per the Prudential Regulations, the SBP has specified that general provision against consumer financing
should be maintained at varying percentages based on the non-performing loan ratio present in the portfolio.
These percentages range from 1% to 2.5% for secured and 4% to 7% for unsecured portfolio.

The Holding Company also maintains general provision in accordance with the applicable requirements of the
Prudential Regulations for Housing Finance issued by the SBP. The provision ranges between 0.5% to 1.5%
based on the non-performing loan ratio present in the portfolio.

The Holding Company is also required to maintain a general reserve of 1% against un-secured small
enterprise financing portfolio as per the applicable requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the
SBP.

In addition to the requirements of the Prudential Regulations, the management has exercised prudence and
recognised a general provision amounting to Rs. 250 million keeping in view the impacts of COVID-19.

As allowed by the SBP, the Holding Company has availed benefit of forced sale value (FSV) of collaterals held
as security of Rs 2,581.515 million (December 31, 2020: Rs 2,632.364 million) relating to advances while
determining the provisioning requirement against non-performing financing as at June 30, 2021. The
additional profit arising from availing the FSV benefit (net of tax) as at June 30, 2021 which is not available for
distribution as either cash or stock dividend to shareholders and bonus to employees approximately
amounted to Rs 1,574.724 million (December 31, 2020: Rs 1,605.742 million).

Although the Holding Company has made provision against its non-performing portfolio as per the category of
classification of the loans, however, the Holding Company still holds enforceable collateral against certain
non-performing loans in the event of recovery through litigation. These securities comprise of charge against
various tangible assets of the borrower including land, building and machinery, stock in trade, etc.
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151

15.2

15.3

15.4
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FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress 151
Property and equipment

Capital work-in-progress

Civil works
Equipment
Furniture and fixture
Vehicles

Land and building

Additions to fixed assets
The following additions have been made to fixed assets during the period:
Capital work-in-progress

Property and equipment

Building on freehold land

Furniture and fixture

Electrical, office and computer equipment
Vehicles

Right-of-use assets - land and building
Others

Total

Disposal of fixed assets
The net book value of fixed assets disposed of during the period is as follows

Furniture and fixture

Electrical, office and computer equipment
Vehicles

Others

Total

Change in accounting estimate

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 --------==--=--=--
958,187 833,762
23,201,349 23,268,393
24,159,536 24,102,155
176,714 225,737
477,466 561,345
40,056 18,838
- 42
263,951 27,800
958,187 833,762
Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
841,084 701,663
- 36,075
9,152 97,986
508,814 378,972
16,470 58,765
654,002 713,848
188,112 445,791
1,376,550 1,731,437
2,217,634 2,433,100
49 3
1,013 3,830
9 38
64 -
1,135 3,871

With effect from January 1, 2021, the management of the Holding Company has revised its estimate of the
useful lives of core banking software and automated teller machines (ATMs) from 5 years to 7 years whereas
the useful lives of other softwares and hardware projects have been revised from 3 years to 5 years. This
revision has been made to make the useful lives of these assets more reflective of their consumption pattern.

The revision has been accounted for as a change in accounting estimate in accordance with the requirements
of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors’. Had the revision in useful lives of these assets not been made, the depreciation expense for the period
would have been higher by Rs 86.176 million and consequently profit before tax would have been lower by the

same amount.
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16.1

16.2

Note

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress 16.1

Computer softwares
Customer relationship
Management rights
Goodwill

Total
Capital work-in-progress

Computer softwares

Additions to intangible assets

The following additions have been made to intangible assets during the period:

Directly purchased

Note

OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency - net of provision

Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currencies - net of provision

Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments

Advance taxation (payments less provisions)

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracts

Fair value of derivative contracts

Acceptances 22

Credit cards and other products fee receivable

Receivable from brokers against sale of shares

Dividend receivable

Receivable from 1Link (Private) Limited

Rent and amenities receivable

Rebate receivable - net

Defined benefit plan asset

Others

Less: provision held against other assets 171

Other assets - net of provision

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims - net

Other assets - total

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------
499,053 567,658
523,997 357,857
574,542 615,605
238,484 238,484
114,600 114,600
1,451,623 1,326,546
1,950,676 1,894,204
499,053 567,658
Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------------
229,382 242,742
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 ------------=-----
8,698,976 7,291,340
4,779 1,314
1,112,210 796,101
- 25,301
988,126 1,229,421
702,744 649,361
88,404 190,130
6,219,529 10,726,305
472,699 369,968
112,566 20,241
154,243 84,632
446,350 515,944
11,291 33,159
79,402 87,632
64,096 66,343
508,446 462,121
19,663,861 22,549,313
(329,878) (329,878)
19,333,983 22,219,435
1,271,248 1,453,786
20,605,231 23,673,221
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1711

18

19
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Provision held against other assets

Dividend receivable

SBP penalties

Fraud forgery theft and account receivable
Security deposits

Others

Movement in provision held against other assets
Opening balance

Charge for the period / year
Reversals during the period / year

Amounts written off
Closing balance

BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan

BORROWINGS

Secured
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
- under export refinance scheme - part | and Il
- under long term financing facility
- under long term financing facility for renewable power energy (RPE)
- under scheme of financing facility for storage of agricultural produce
- under Islamic export refinance scheme
- under refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries
- under Islamic financing for renewable energy
- under Islamic long term financing facility
- under Islamic temporary economic refinance scheme
- under Islamic refinance facility for combating COVID-19
- under Islamic financing facility for storage of agricultural produce

Repurchase agreement borrowings
Borrowing from other financial institution
Total secured

Unsecured

Overdrawn nostro accounts
Musharaka acceptances
Other borrowings

Total unsecured

Half Year | June 30, 2021

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------
75,348 75,348
51,050 51,050
20,867 20,867
22,994 22,994
159,619 159,619
329,878 329,878
329,878 256,222
- 74,536
- (795)
- 73,741
- (85)
329,878 329,878
13,915,475 13,543,270
3,711,352 8,623,400
1,148,210 1,246,164
764,372 809,662
38,843 53,129
25,032,101 19,400,601
10,571,487 12,932,302
2,310,421 1,400,274
5,847,842 3,599,252
12,762,500 3,807,141
322,800 35,400
24,377 -
62,534,305 51,907,325
11,402,607 -
483,871 500,000
74,420,783 52,407,325
2,308,157 1,633,331
- 410,000
7,404,554 3,995,860
9,712,711 6,039,191
84,133,494 58,446,516
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20 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
In local In foreign In local In foreign
currency currenc?es Total currency currenciges Total
Rupees '000
Customers
Current deposits 188,513,280 21,521,120 || 210,034,400 || 144,344,213 20,813,651 165,157,864
Savings deposits 193,848,126 17,201,039 || 211,049,165 || 184,977,342 17,643,501 202,620,843
Term deposits 133,187,670 2,069,911 || 135,257,581 143,287,216 3,141,533 146,428,749
Margin deposits 2,856,818 7,903 2,864,721 3,341,663 15,132 3,356,795
518,405,894 40,799,973 559,205,867 475,950,434 41,613,817 517,564,251
Financial institutions
Current deposits 1,617,772 34,959 1,652,731 813,493 49,245 862,738
Savings deposits 23,921,126 - 23,921,126 15,880,218 - 15,880,218
Term deposits 7,036,850 - 7,036,850 6,325,010 - 6,325,010
32,575,748 34,959 32,610,707 23,018,721 49,245 23,067,966
550,981,642 40,834,932 591,816,574 498,969,155 41,663,062 540,632,217
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
21 DEFERRED TAX (LIABILITIES) / ASSETS RUPEES "000 ———rrerememmmeme
Deductible temporary differences on
- provision for diminution in the value of investments 38,235 162,577
- provision against advances, off balance sheet etc. 1,184,573 1,215,623
- provision against other assets 128,462 128,462
- Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) 22,695 4,675
- defined benefit obligation 32 (620)
- unused tax losses 36,368 69,652
- others 1,467 537
1,411,832 1,570,906
Taxable temporary differences on
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets (1,565,092) (1,599,730)
- surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets (14,113) (14,113)
- surplus on revaluation of investments (998,058) (1,137,218)
- fair value adjustment relating to net assets acquired upon amalgamation (224,071) (240,087)
- fair value adjustment relating to net assets acquired upon business combination (52,496) (52,496)
- accelerated tax depreciation (17,999) (96,495)
- fair valuation of previously held equity interest in the Subsidiary Company (13,118) (13,118)
(2,884,947) (3,153,257)
(1,473,115) (1,582,351)
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22 OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies
Unearned commission and income on bills discounted
Accrued expenses

Acceptances

Unclaimed dividends

Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts
Current taxation (provision less payments)

Charity fund balance

Provision against off-balance sheet obligations
Security deposits against leases

Withholding tax payable

Federal excise duty payable

Payable to brokers against purchase of shares

Fair value of derivative contracts

Payable related to credit cards and other products
Lease liability against right-of-use assets

Advance against disposal of assets

Funds held as security

Payable to 1Link (Private) Limited

Insurance payable

Clearing and settlement accounts

Others

221 Provision against off-balance sheet obligations
Opening balance
Charge for the period / year

Reversals during the period / year

Closing balance

23 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX

Surplus on revaluation of:

- available for sale securities

- fixed assets

- non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of:

- available for sale securities

- fixed assets

- non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

76 | Half Year | June 30, 2021

221

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------
2,183,035 3,792,193
10,559 6,344
837,706 968,302
1,828,156 2,531,060
6,219,529 10,726,305
45,017 45,043
1,357,139 1,907,030
20,387 -
1,050 1,070
104,924 127,569
341,503 586,301
167,440 182,100
48,788 67,402
165,558 35,001
681,052 964,671
197,081 1,146,914
9,022,715 8,525,253
12,130 459,467
261,055 242,227
150,548 154,308
104,334 115,012
6,618,109 2,706,765
563,637 351,409
30,941,452 35,641,746
127,569 113,676
1,262 25,132
(23,907) (11,239)
(22,645) 13,893
104,924 127,569
2,559,123 2,915,943
7,316,055 7,411,321
1,271,248 1,453,786
11,146,426 11,781,050
(998,058) (1,137,218)
(1,565,092) (1,602,246)
(14,113) (14,113)
(2,577,2683) (2,753,577)
8,569,163 9,027,473
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24

24.2

24.21

24.2.2

2423

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guarantees
Commitments

Other contingent liabilities

Guarantees:

Financial guarantees
Performance guarantees

Other guarantees

Commitments:

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions

- letters of credit

Commitments in respect of:
- forward foreign exchange contracts
- forward government securities transactions

- derivatives - cross currency and interest rate swaps (notional principal)
- extending credit (irrevocable)

Commitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed assets

- intangible assets

Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase
Sale

Commitments in respect of forward government securities transactions

Purchase
Sale

Commitments in respect of derivatives

Sale

Note

241
24.2
24.3

2421
2422

2423
24.4

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------

32,931,164 29,202,222
226,573,249 183,850,529
4,122,244 4,122,244
263,626,657 217,174,995
6,697,064 7,810,863
7,941,513 5,662,415
18,292,587 15,728,944
32,931,164 29,202,222
75,739,365 50,571,999
105,603,260 93,025,986
11,407,050 2,989,036
6,698,587 8,272,187
26,946,615 28,859,840
50,006 49,303
128,366 82,178
226,573,249 183,850,529
73,272,270 66,134,904
32,330,990 26,891,082
105,603,260 93,025,986

11,407,050 -
- 2,989,036
11,407,050 2,989,036
6,698,587 8,272,187
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24.3

24.3.1

(ii)

24.3.2
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Other contingent liabilities Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
Holding Company: Note 2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 --------==--=--=--

Suit filed by a customer for recovery of alleged losses suffered which
is pending in the Honorable High Court of Sindh. The Holding Company's

legal advisors are confident that the Holding Company has a strong case 2,510,000 2,510,000
Indemnity issued favouring the Honorable High Court in one of the cases 457,543 457,543
Tax liability of gain on bargain purchase on the acquisition of ex-RBS Pakistan (i) 1,154,701 1,154,701

4,122,244 4,122,244

Income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been finalised upto the tax year 2019 (accounting
year 2018) and tax return for the tax year 2020 (accounting year 2019) has already been filed. Income tax
return for the tax year 2021 (accounting year 2020) will be filed within stipulated timeline.

The department and the Holding Company has disagreement on a matter relating to taxability of gain on
bargain purchase on the acquisition of ex-RBS Pakistan. The additional tax liability on the matter amounts to
Rs. 1,154.701 million (December 31, 2020: Rs. 1,154.701 million). The Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) [(CIR(A)] had deleted the said additional tax liability, however the income tax department had filed
an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR(A). During the current
period, the ATIR has passed an order and maintained the decision of the CIR(A) in favour of the Holding
Company. The management of the Holding Company is confident that in case an appeal is filed by the
department against the order of the ATIR, the matter will be decided in the Holding Company’s favour and
accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements in
respect of this matter.

There are certain claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debt amounting to Rs 33,864 million
(December 31, 2020: Rs 31,374 million). These mainly represent counter claims filed by the borrowers for
restricting the Holding Company from disposal of assets (such as mortgaged / pledged assets kept as
security), cases where the Holding Company was proforma defendant for defending its interest in the
underlying collateral kept by it at the time of financing, certain cases filed by ex-employees of the Holding
Company for damages sustained by them consequent to the termination from the Holding Company’s
employment and cases for damages towards opportunity losses suffered by customers due to non-
disbursements of running finance facility as per the agreed terms. The above also includes an amount of Rs
25,299 million (December 31, 2020: 25,299 million) in respect of a suit filed against the Holding Company for
declaration, recovery of monies, release of securities, rendition of account and damages.

Based on legal advices and / or internal assessments, management is confident that the above matters will be
decided in the Holding Company’s favour and the possibility of any outcome against the Holding Company is
remote and accordingly no provision has been made in these condensed interim consolidated financial
statements.

Subsidiary Company:

The income tax returns of the Subsidiary Company for the tax years 2004 to 2020 (financial year ended June
30, 2004 to December 31, 2019) have been filed and are deemed to have been assessed under the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001, unless selected by the taxation authorities for audit purposes. The Tax year 2005
(financial year ended June 30, 2005) has been selected by the taxation authorities for audit purpose. The tax
authorities have passed an order under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whereby they have
determined an additional liability of Rs. 0.913 million for the tax year 2005 on account of apportionment of
expenses and disallowance of certain expenses. The Subsidiary Company has paid Rs. 0.414 million and has
filed an appeal against the order before the Commissioner Appeals, the proceedings of which are underway.
The remaining tax liability on these matters is Rs. 0.498 million. The management of the Subsidiary Company
is confident that the decision in respect of these matters will be decided in the Subsidiary Company’s favour
and accordingly no provision for the above has been made in these condensed interim consolidated financial
statements in respect of this liability.
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(ii)

(iif)

(vi)

The income tax department has issued orders and show cause notices under section 221 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 for recovery of Workers Welfare Fund (WWF) aggregating to Rs 0.818 million in respect of tax
years 2008 and 2013. The details of orders and show cause along with the management actions are listed
below:

Tax years Order / show Status WWF Demand
cause references Rupees '000
2008 Order u/s 221 dated June 30, Appea.l pending before the
2014 Commissioner Appeals 315
2013 Show cause u/s 221 dated May 7,| Showcause notice has been
2014 responded to 503
818

The management is of the view that WWF was not applicable for tax year 2008. In tax year 2013, subsequent
to clarification decision by the SHC, the management has not admitted WWF charge in the annual return of
income. The management of the Subsidiary Company is confident that the decision in respect of these matters
will be decided in the Subsidiary Company’s favour and accordingly no provision for the above has been
made in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements in respect of this liability.

The Punjab Revenue Authority issued show cause notice No.PRA/AM/61/2205/ dated March 12, 2014 to
Faysal Asset Management Limited requiring the Subsidiary Company to obtain registration / enrolment and to
pay sales tax amounting to Rs. 6.055 million from July 2013 to March 2014 under the Punjab Sales Tax on
Services Act, 2012 with effect from May 22, 2013 on management fee earned in Punjab.

In respect of this, the Subsidiary Company, jointly with other Asset Management Companies together with their
respective collective investment schemes through their trustees, has filed a petition on July 8, 2014 in the SHC
challenging the above notice. The Court has ordered suspension of the show cause notice till the next hearing
of appeal in their order dated July 10, 2014. The next date of hearing has not yet been decided. The
management of the Subsidiary Company is confident that the decision in respect of these matters will be
decided in the Subsidiary Company’s favour and accordingly no provision for the above has been made in
these condensed interim consolidated financial statements in respect of this liability.

During the prior period, the audit of the tax year 2013 (financial year ended June 30, 2013) was completed by
the taxation authorities. The tax authorities have passed an order under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, whereby they have determined an additional liability of Rs. 4.964 million for the tax year
2013 on account of apportionment of expenses, salary expenses and hardware and software expense. The
management filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)] on the grounds of
disallowances made by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue. The CIR(A) remanded back a few
expenses while ordered against various other expenses for which the Subsidiary Company has decided to
appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). The management of the Subsidiary Company is
confident that the decision in respect of these matters will be decided in the Subsidiary Company’s favour
and accordingly no provision for the above has been made in these condensed interim consolidated financial
statements in respect of this liability.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the audit of the tax year 2014 (financial year ended June 30,
2014) was completed by the taxation authorities. The tax authorities have passed an order under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whereby they have determined an additional liability of Rs. 2.673
million for the tax year 2014 on account of apportionment of expenses, time barred payables, expenses
claimed on provisional basis, salary expenses, marketing and advertising expenses, brokerage and
commission expenses, legal and professional charges and hardware and software expenses. The
management had decided to file an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)] on
the grounds of disallowances made by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue. During the current
period the CIR(A) issued an order whereby the earlier order passed by the tax authorities under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, has been annulled on the basis of being time barred, and
consequentially the demand for additional liability has been relinquished. The management has decided to file
an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) to contest the order passed by DCIR. The
management of the Subsidiary Company is confident that the decision in respect of these matters will be
decided in the Subsidiary Company’s favour and accordingly no provision for the above has been made in
these condensed interim consolidated financial statements in respect of this liability.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has passed an
order under section 182(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2018, whereby the DCIR has
imposed a penalty of Rs. 0.833 million on account of non submission of statement required to be filed by the
Subsidiary Company under bilateral or multilateral convention under section 165B of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The management has filed an appeal before the CIR(A) on the subject matter and has paid
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an amount of Rs 0.083 million being 10% of the total amount of penalty imposed under the order and has thus
obtained an automatic stay on the subject matter. The management of the Subsidiary Company is confident
that the matter will be decided in the Subsidiary Company'’s favour and accordingly no provision in respect of
this penalty has been made in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

During the current period, the Subsidiary Company has received an appellate order on June 15, 2021 from the
CIR(A), dismissing the appeal filed by the Subsidiary Company on August 17, 2020. The management intends
to file an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), but as a matter of abundant caution has
recognised a provision of the full amount of penalty of Rs. 0.833 million in these condensed interim
consolidated financial statements.

Commitments to extend credits

The Holding Company makes commitments to extend credit (including to related parties) in the normal course
of its business but these being revocable commitments do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the
facility is unilaterally withdrawn except for Rs 26,947 million (December 31, 2020: Rs 28,860 million) which are
irrevocable in nature.

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS Rupees "000 -----rnmmrrmmenn
Cross currency swaps (notional principal) 6,462,271 7,792,684
Interest rate swap (notional principal) 236,316 479,503

Product analysis

June 30, 2021 (Un-audited)
Counterparties Cross currency swaps Interest rate swap
Notional Mark to market Notional Mark to market
principal gain/ (loss) principal gain
------------------------------------ Rupees '000 -----------mmmmrerrmmmmeee e
With banks for
Hedging - - - -
Market making 2,651,948 35,423 236,316 3,904
With other entities for
Hedging - - - -
Market making 3,810,323 (631,975) - -
Total
Hedging = = = =
Market making 6,462,271 (596,552) 236,316 3,904
December 31, 2020 (Audited)
. Cross currency swaps Interest rate swap
Counterparties
Notional Mark to market Notional Mark to market
principal gain/ (loss) principal gain
------------------------------------ Rupees '000 -----------mmmmrmmmmmee oo

With banks for
Hedging - - - -
Market making 3,218,043 62,289 479,503 7,048
With other entities for
Hedging - - - -
Market making 4,574,641 (843,878) - -
Total
Hedging - - - -
Market making 7,792,684 (781,589) 479,503 7,048
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Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
26 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED Note 2021 , 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------
On:
Loans and advances 13,417,551 19,410,641
Investments 10,807,757 11,775,254
Lendings to financial institutions 196,184 32,331
Balances with banks 154 14,525
Securities purchased under resale agreements 75,550 724,322
24,497,196 31,957,073
27 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
On:
Deposits 9,540,449 14,889,145
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 462,408 109,358
Other short term borrowings 24,763 18,078
SBP borrowings 461,870 281,259
Short sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds - 42,219
Bai Muajjal - 163,004
Musharaka acceptances 99,952 578,818
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 713,954 505,745
Cost of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency deposits / borrowings 1,271,000 2,151,216
12,574,396 18,738,842
28 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Branch banking customer fees 391,631 224,217
Consumer finance related fees 249,999 140,439
Card related fees (debit and credit cards) 907,927 686,403
Credit related fees 16,980 29,051
Investment banking fees 126,265 60,516
Commission on trade 188,293 130,388
Commission on guarantees 67,148 37,721
Commission on cash management 37,914 30,107
Commission on remittances including home remittances 166,898 97,284
Commission on bancassurance 143,238 146,606
Commission on sale of funds unit 98,832 43,304
Management fee 154,643 59,098
Advisory fee 9,167 512
Sales load 58,108 -
Others 37,025 28,607
2,654,068 1,714,253
29 GAIN ON SECURITIES
Realised - net 29.1 417,624 | | 971,391
Unrealised - held for trading - net (19,022) 52,555
398,602 1,023,946
29.1 Realised gain on:
Federal Government securities 245,979 742,809
Shares 90,453 202,471
Open end mutual funds 19,672 26,111
Associates 61,520 -
417,624 971,391
30 OTHER INCOME
Rent on property 90,098 69,173
Gain on sale of fixed assets - net 14,131 5,744
Gain on sale of non-banking assets - net 47,487 -
Loss on short sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) - (88,139)
Notice pay 221 2,442
Scrap income 2,635 838
Others 273 677
154,845 (9,265)
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31 OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense

Property expense

Rent and taxes

Insurance

Utilities cost

Security (including guards)

Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges)
Depreciation on owned fixed assets

Depreciation on non-banking assets

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Others

Information technology expenses
Software maintenance

Hardware maintenance
Depreciation on owned fixed assets
Amortisation

Network charges

Others

Other operating expenses
Directors’ fees and allowances

Legal and professional charges
Outsourced services costs - staff
Travelling and conveyance

NIFT clearing charges

Depreciation on owned fixed assets
Training and development

Postage and courier charges
Communication

Marketing, advertisement and publicity
Donations

Auditors remuneration

Insurance

Stationery and printing

Bank fees and charges

Brokerage and commission

Deposit protection premium

Credit card bonus points redemption
Others

32 OTHER CHARGES
Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan
33 PROVISIONS AND WRITE-OFFS - NET

(Reversal of provision) / provision for diminution in value
of investments

Provision against loans and advances

Bad debts written off directly

Recoveries of written off / charged off bad debts

Reversal of provision against off balance sheet obligations
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Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------
3,926,773 3,564,565
215,384 80,683
24,813 25,336
302,974 289,875
361,147 379,386
270,811 225,655
264,563 254,755
2,483 3,408
763,971 735,055
41,398 35,431
2,247,544 2,029,584
605,363 839,994
114,816 152,991
174,536 185,299
63,242 97,842
116,945 128,855
303 2,025
1,075,205 1,407,006
52,760 84,916
71,495 44,632
206,792 180,014
37,138 41,877
24,775 23,332
239,389 202,679
9,364 14,128
59,389 75,411
90,989 70,687
129,094 220,731
79,917 77,424
14,012 1,717
451,850 348,469
161,742 180,940
91,215 63,395
39,860 32,080
260,117 195,328
90,402 84,735
242,280 225,662
2,352,580 2,178,157
9,602,102 9,179,312
4,141 108,012
(316,391) 35,054
506,889 1,450,453
18,548 4,078
(197,949) (23,897)
(22,645) (880)
(11,548) 1,464,808
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Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
34 TAXATION Rupees '000 --------=--======-
Current 2,483,909 2,844,889
Prior periods 40,000 60,000
Deferred 45,940 (382,509)
2,569,849 2,522,380
35 BASIC / DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Un-audited
For the qurter ended For the half year ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees '000
Profit after tax for the period 1,953,044 1,739,430 4,068,256 3,794,021
——————————————————— Number of shares in thousands ------------------
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,517,697 1,517,697 1,517,697 1,517,697
Rupees
Basic earnings per share 1.29 1.15 2.68 2.50
35.1 Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Group does not have any convertible instruments in
issue at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option
to convert is exercised.
36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted market
price. Quoted securities classified as held to maturity are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted equity
securities, other than investments in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the break-up
value of these investments as per their latest available audited financial statements.

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits
and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and active
market for these assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments.

Fair value of financial assets

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:
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June 30, 2021 (Un-audited)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On-balance sheet financial instruments o Rupees '000 --------=--mmmmmmmmeemmmmmmeeee
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments

Federal Government securities - 254,115,878 - 254,115,878

Shares 5,206,935 1,625,215 - 6,732,150

Non-Government debt securities 47,442,500 5,650,157 - 53,092,657
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investments

Non-Government debt securities = 9,392,586 = 9,392,586
Non-financial assets - measured at fair value
Fixed assets (land and buildings) - - 11,323,744 11,323,744
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - - 2,259,374 2,259,374
Off-bal sheet fi ial instr ts - measured at fair value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - 72,726,671 - 72,726,671
Forward sale of foreign exchange - 32,439,785 - 32,439,785
Derivatives sales - 6,698,587 - 6,698,587

December 31, 2020 (Audited)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On-balance sheet financial instruments Y < 712V ——
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments

Federal Government securities - 202,016,327 - 202,016,327

Shares 5,631,735 2,077,503 - 7,709,238

Non-Government debt securities 47,510,000 6,092,828 - 53,602,828
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investments

Non-Government debt securities - 10,029,170 - 10,029,170
Non-financial assets - measured at fair value
Fixed assets (land and buildings) - - 11,323,744 11,323,744
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - - 2,683,207 2,683,207
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured at fair value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - 64,514,335 - 64,514,335
Forward sale of foreign exchange - 26,528,182 - 26,528,182
Derivatives sales - 8,272,187 - 8,272,187

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date when the
event or change in circumstances require the Bank to exercise such transfers.
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Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2

Item

Valuation approach and input used

Pakistan Investment Bonds /
Market Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV /
PKFRV rates.

ljarah Sukuk

Fair values of GoP ljarah Sukuk are derived using the PKISRV rates announced by the
Financial Market Association (FMA) through Reuters. These rates denote an average of
quotes received from different pre-defined / approved dealers / brokers.

Unlisted ordinary shares

Break-up value determined on the basis of the NAV of a company using the latest available
audited financial statements.

Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)
and Sukuk Certificates

Fair values of TFCs and Sukuk certificates are determined using the MUFAP rates.

Forward foreign exchange
contracts

The valuation has been determined by interpolating the mark-to-market currency rates
announced by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Derivative instruments

The Bank enters into derivative contracts with various counterparties. Derivatives that are
valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs are mainly interest rate
swaps, cross currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts. The most frequently]
applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value
calculations.

Mutual funds

Units of mutual funds are valued using the net asset value (NAV) announce by the Mutual
Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 3

Item

Valuation approach and input used

Fixed assets (land and building)

Land and buildings are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from their fair value. These were
last revalued on December 31, 2019.

Non-banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims

Non-banking assets acquiredin satisfaction of claims are revalued by professionally qualified|
valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ,
materially from their fair value. These were last revalued on December 31, 2019.

The valuations, mentioned above, are conducted by the valuation experts appointed by the Holding Company
which are also on the panel of the Pakistan Banks’ Association (PBA). The valuation experts use a market
based approach to arrive at the fair value of the Holding Company’s properties. The market approach uses
prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable or
similar properties. These values are adjusted to reflect the current condition of the properties. The effect of
changes in the unobservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly a
quantitative disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these condensed interim consolidated financial

statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment details with respect to business activities

Profit and loss account for the
half year ended June 30, 2021
(un-audited)

Net mark-up / return / profit

Inter segment revenue - net

Non mark-up / return / interest income

Total Income

Segment direct expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Profit before tax

Statement of financial position
as at June 30, 2021
(un-audited)

(Cash and bank balances

Lendings to financial institutions

Investments

- Investment provision

Net inter segment lending

Advances - performing

Advances - non-performing

- Advances - provisions

Others

Total assets

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Deposits and other accounts
Net inter segment borrowing
Others

Total liabilities

Equity

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

2021
Retail || CBG || Treaswy [[ sam  [[ othes [[  Tota
Rupees '000
(5,143131) 8465912 8,634,986 142,697 (110277) 11,990,187
13566060  (6913745)  (7,881,369) (86,120) 1,315,168 -
2,324,200 705,391 1,561,038 18,985 (233,189) 4376425
10747129 2,257,558 2,314,661 75,562 971,702 16,366,612
5,731,061 171723 147,960 72,167 3617,144 9,740,055
3159036 301,067 69,574 60,178 (3,589,855) 5
8,890,097 472,790 217,534 132,345 27,289 9,740,055
(81330)  1,020417 (309,670) (752,633) 102,668 (11,548)
1,938,362 755,351 2406797 695,850 841,745 6,638,105
23,382,486 37,933,910 . 61,316,396
. : 7,500,000 . : 7,500,000
. 14968227 311600685 3298820 698,159 330,565,891
. (1379215)  (2,081,682) (3:460,897)
466,069,372 : . . (466,069,372) 5
71301005 263,928,442 . . 5015311 340,244,758
3916037 4825038 - 14,922,035 34,891 23,698,001
(3196,980) (3,564,600 . (13,226,805) (267,446) (20,255831)
12188380 3831879 1981888 (1,885.234) 30,598,530 46,715,443
573660300 283,988,986 357,637,268 1027134 (429989927) 786,323,761
7831420 5450674 21781400 84,133,494
548659196 41,593,377 : 263,479 1,300,522 591,816,574
- 186272515 333619654 753499 (520,645,668 :
17169684 1602420 675,148 10,156 26,872,634 46,330,042
573660300 283,988,986 356,076,202 1007134 (492472512) 72228010
- - 1,561,066 - 62,482,585 64,043,651
573660300 283,988,986 357,637,268 1007134 (429989927) 786,323,761
16630045 91,345,291 1,151,836 109,128,072
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2020
Real || oBs [ Teesuy [[ s [[ omes || Tow

Profit and loss account for the Rupees '000

half year ended June 30, 2020

(un-audited)
Net mark-up / return / profit (9,709,329 14,547,573 8,158,787 219,256 1,944 13,218,231
Inter segment revenue - net 17,493,775 (12,262,006) (7,668,700) (154,638) 2,591,569 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 1,715,248 472,736 2,018,991 1,895 (210441 3,998,429
Total Income 9,499,694 2,758,303 2,509,078 66,513 2,383,072 17,216,660
Segment direct expenses 5,436,867 263,079 165,083 57,527 3,512,895 9,435,451
Inter segment expense allocation 2,979,425 342,267 68,112 61,725 (3,451,529) -
Total expenses 8,416,292 605,346 233,195 119,252 61,366 9,435,451
Provisions 378,461 1,007,879 35,054 25,019 18,395 1,464,808
Profit before tax 704,941 1,145,078 2,240,829 (77,758) 2,303,311 6,316,401
Statement of financial position

as at December 31, 2020

(audited)
Cash and bank balances 29,219,912 - 33,540,008 - - 62,759,920

Lendings to financial institutions - 2,985,000 - - 2,985,000
Investments - 16,430,902 259,865,978 3,298,820 651412 280,247,112

- Investment provision - (1,688,885) (2,088,403) - (3,777,288)
Net inter segment lending 412,879,111 - (412,879,111) -
Advances - performing 64,171,608 245,899,442 - 3,448,811 313,519,861
Advances - non-performing 6,647,456 3,489,249 - 16,049,685 39,035 26,225,425
- Advances - provisions (5,245,632) (2,755,805) - (13,299,212) (264,759) (21,565,408)
Others 10,290,418 3,793,772 4,945.294 (1,881,285) 32,621,381 49,669,580
Total assets 517,962,873 266,857,560 299,647,395 2,079,605 (376,483,231) 710,064,202
Borrowings 5,488,813 46,412,012 6,545,691 - - 58,446,516
Deposits and other accounts 494,881,273 44,326,035 - 201,771 1,223,138 540,632,217
Net inter segment borrowing - 175,499,595 289,997,780 1,871,334 (467,368,709) -
Others 17,592,787 619,918 331,518 6,500 32,216,644 50,767,367
Total liabilities 517,962,873 266,857,560 296,874,989 2,079,605 (433,928,927) 649,846,100
Equity - - 2,772,406 - 57,445,696 60,218,102
Total equity and liabilities 517,962,873 266,857,560 299,647,395 2,079,605 (376,483,231) 710,064,202
Contingencies and commitments 14,672,741 64,309,145 - 1,249,878 - 80,231,764
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

39

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 -----------=------

CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS
Minimum capital requirement (MCR):
Paid-up capital (net of losses) 15,176,965 15,176,965
Capital adequacy ratio (CAR):
Eligible common equity tier 1 (CET 1) capital 53,304,572 49,609,041
Eligible additional tier 1 (ADT 1) capital - -
Total eligible tier 1 capital 53,304,572 49,609,041
Eligible tier 2 capital 8,190,161 8,503,577
Total eligible capital (tier 1 + tier 2) 61,494,733 58,112,618
Risk weighted assets (RWAs):
Credit risk 252,243,082 235,843,958
Market risk 23,633,722 22,173,745
Operational risk 51,622,995 51,622,995
Total 327,499,799 309,640,698
Common equity tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 16.28% 16.02%
Tier 1 Capital adequacy ratio 16.28% 16.02%
Total Capital adequacy ratio 18.78% 18.77%
Leverage ratio (LR):
Eligible tier-1 capital 53,304,572 49,609,041
Total exposures 949,370,894 833,658,911
Leverage ratio (in %) 5.61% 5.95%
Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR):
Total high quality liquid assets 315,223,770 265,799,775
Total net cash outflow 141,801,665 125,870,150
Liquidity coverage ratio (Ratio) 2.223 2112
Net stable funding ratio (NSFR):
Total available stable funding 544,342,310 493,515,307
Total required stable funding 331,601,493 291,597,390
Net stable funding ratio (in %) 164.16% 169.25%
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the half year ended June 30, 2021

40 ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

The Holding Company is operating 500 Islamic banking branches (December 31, 2020: 500) including 1
Islamic sub-branch (December 31, 2020: 1). The statement of financial position and profit and loss account of
these branches for the period ended June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Un-audited Audited

June 30, December 31,

Statement of financial position Note 2021 2020
————————————————— Rupees '000 --------====------

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 23,706,574 21,763,033
Balances with other banks 4,887,818 1,929,779
Due from financial institutions 35,850,000 28,000,000
Investments 40.2 67,612,461 67,554,233
Islamic financing and related assets - net 40.3 254,755,941 189,941,639
Fixed assets 13,520,878 14,904,507
Intangible assets 179,192 136,688
Other assets 11,203,362 6,278,487

411,716,226 330,508,366
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 7,076,251 6,029,790
Due to financial institutions 57,364,636 47,086,694
Deposits and other accounts 40.4 291,086,991 248,090,892
Due to head office 273,514 2,328,964
Other liabilities 30,949,196 11,198,497

386,750,588 314,734,837
NET ASSETS 24,965,638 15,773,529
REPRESENTED BY
Islamic banking fund 17,180,000 9,180,000
Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 1,485,117 1,468,656
Unappropriated profit 40.5 6,300,521 5,124,873

24,965,638 15,773,529
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 40.6
Un-audited
For the half year ended

June 30, June 30,
Profit and loss account 2021 Rupees 000 2020
Profit / return earned 40.7 11,642,456 10,060,235
Profit / return expensed 40.8 4,567,514 4,950,082
Net profit / return 6,974,942 5,110,153
Other income
Fee and commission income 812,210 338,176
Foreign exchange income 174,023 73,764
Gain on securities 16,372 -
Other income 68,197 3,136
Total other income 1,070,802 415,076
Total income 8,045,744 5,625,229
Other expenses
Operating expenses 4,667,175 | 2,955,710
Other charges 5 47,012
Total other expenses 4,667,180 3,002,722
Profit before provisions 3,378,564 2,522,507
Provisions and write offs - net 1,451,272 56,049
Profit before taxation 1,927,292 2,466,458
Taxation 751,644 961,919
Profit after taxation 1,175,648 1,504,539
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Notes to and forming part of the Condensed Interim
Consolidated Financial Statements

For the half year ended June 30, 2021

40.2

40.3

Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
40.1 Due from financial institutons Rupees "000 =-----nmmrrmmenn
Musharaka placement 35,850,000 28,000,000
Un-audited Audited
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Cost/ Provision Canying Cost/ Provision Surplus Canying
Investments by amortised ) Forl Surplus value amortised for (defici) value
t: cost cost iminuti
Rupees ‘000
Federal Government
securities:
- ljarah Sukuks 34,691,128 207,703 34,898,831 34,434,037 (27,948) 34,406,089
- Bai Muajjal
Government of
Pakistan 1,597,048 1,597,048 1,597,048 1,597,048
- Other Federal
Government
securities 1,138,895 - 1,138,895 466,435 - 466,435
3742101 207,703 37,634,774 36,497,520 (27,948) 36,469,572
Shares
- Listed companies 100,000 100,000
Non Government
Debt securities:
- Listed ‘ 15,000,000 || - “ 18,079 ‘ 15,018,079 || 15,000,000 H E || 410,000 || 15,410,000 ‘
- Unlisted 14,442,108 2 417,500 14,859,608 15,663,124 - 11,637 15,674,661
29,442,108 435,579 29,877,687 30,663,124 - 421,537 31,084,661
Total investments 66,969,179 643,282 67,612,461 67,160,644 393,589 67,554,233
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
----------------- Rupees '000 --------====------
Islamic financing and related assets
Murabaha 6,061,640 2,802,616
Musharaka 7,164 7,194
Diminishing Musharaka 127,115,944 102,902,725
Istisna 22,003,660 17,760,768
Tawwarug 1,375,449 55,002
Running Musharaka 47,605,956 37,086,503
Fixed assets ljarah financing - net 69,715 78,056
Tijarah 124,898 232,113
Advance against Murabaha financing 1,827,983 1,267,610
Advanced against Diminishing Musharaka 25,977,904 16,552,367
Advance against ljarah 624,922 937,383
Advance against Istisna 12,053,322 6,890,624
Advance against Islamic export refinance 5,682,287 2,650,700
Advance against Tijarah 101,896 -
Advance against Tawwarug 33,285 -
Musawamah 53,175 -
Bai salam 209,110 -
Salam 110,000 -
Inventory related to Islamic financing 6,425,550 1,974,625
Gross Islamic financing and related assets 257,463,860 191,198,286
Less: provision against Islamic financings
- specific (2,502,107)| | (1,094,130)
- general (205,812) (162,517)
(2,707,919) (1,256,647)
Islamic financing and related assets - net of provision 254,755,941 189,941,639
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Un-audited Audited
40.4 Deposits June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
In local In forelg.;n Total In local In forel.gn Total
currency || currencies currency currencies
Rupees '000
Customers
Current deposits 122,143,120 9,955,747 132,098,867 82,149,540 8,463,757 90,613,297
Savings deposits 101,048,702 6,406,649 107,455,351 95,053,032 6,078,395 101,131,427
Term deposits 30,460,975 182,111 30,643,086 45,612,885 245,025 45,857,910
253,652,797 16,544,507 270,197,304 222,815,457 14,787,177 237,602,634
Financial institutions
Current deposits 232,078 7,614 239,692 171,270 78 171,348
Savings deposits 15,056,445 - 15,056,445 8,426,214 7,646 8,433,860
Term deposits 5,593,550 - 5,593,550 1,883,050 - 1,883,050
20,882,073 7,614 20,889,687 10,480,534 7,724 10,488,258
274,534,870 16,552,121 291,086,991 233,295,991 14,794,901 248,090,892
Un-audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 ---------=nnmmn=m-
40.5 Islamic Banking Business Unappropriated Profit
Opening balance 5,124,873 2,794,403
Add: Islamic Banking profit for the period / year 1,927,292 3,820,444
Less: taxation (751,644) (1,489,974)
Closing balance 6,300,521 5,124,873
40.6 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Guarantees 20,174,555 12,003,581
Commitments 62,182,341 50,760,337
82,356,896 62,763,918
Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
----------------- Rupees '000 ---------===------
40.7 Profit / return earned of financing, investments and placement
Profit earned on:
Financing 7,872,142 8,106,768
Investments 3,670,314 1,953,467
11,542,456 10,060,235
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Un-audited
For the half year ended
June 30, June 30,
2021 202
77777777777777777 Rupees '000 e
40.8 Profit on deposits and other dues expensed

Deposits and other accounts 3,262,817 3,038,293
Other short term borrowings 869,369 1,651,136
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 435,328 360,653
4,567,514 4,950,082

41 GENERAL

Comparative information has been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these condensed
interim consolidated financial statements, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison and to conform with
changes in presentation in the current period. There have been no significant reclassifications or re-
arrangements during the period.

42 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in their meeting held on August 26, 2021 has declared an
interim cash divided of Rs. 0.5 i.e 5% (June 30,2020: Nil). The condensed interim consolidated financial
statements for the half year ended June 30, 2021 do not include the effect of this appropriation which will be
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2021.

43 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on August 26, 2021 by
the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.

PRESIDENT & CEO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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